

2023 HUMAN RIGHTS VIOLATIONS REPORT

BASED ON REAL OR PERCEIVED

SEXUAL ORIENTATION, GENDER IDENTITY/

EXPRESSION AND SEX CHARACTERISTICS

(SOGIESC) IN NIGERIA





2023 HUMAN RIGHTS VIOLATIONS REPORT

BASED ON REAL OR PERCEIVED

SEXUAL ORIENTATION, GENDER IDENTITY/ EXPRESSION AND SEX CHARACTERISTICS (SOGIESC) IN NIGERIA

Copyright

The Initiative for Equal Rights (TIERs)

Contact: info@theinitiativeforequalrights.org **Website**: www.theinitiativeforequalrights.org

This report was compiled by:



in partnership with:















































PERTINENT ABBREVIATIONS

LGBTQIA+ – Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer and Intersex

SOGIESC – Sexual Orientation, Gender Identity/Expression and Sex Characteristics

SSMPA – Same Sex Marriage (Prohibition) Act, 2014

SSMPL – Lagos State Same Sex Marriage (Prohibition) Law, 2007

TIERs – The Initiative for Equal Rights

UNHRC – United Nations Human Rights Council

VAPP Act – Violence Against Persons (Prohibition) Act 2015

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

For this report, these terms have the following meanings.

- Asexual: an asexual person does not feel sexual attraction. Asexual people have the same emotional needs as everyone else and can build close relationships just as well. Asexuality should not be confused with celibacy, which is a decision or a specific situation.
- Homosexual: A person emotionally, romantically, sexually or relationally attracted to people of the same gender.
- Lesbian: A woman emotionally, romantically, sexually or relationally attracted to other women.
- Gay: A synonym for homosexuality in many parts of the world. In this report, it is used specifically to refer to a man who is emotionally, romantically, sexually and relationally attracted to other men. This is inclusive of both cisgender and transgender men.
- Bisexual: A person emotionally, romantically, sexually or relationally attracted to people of the same gender and other genders, though not necessarily simultaneously; a bisexual person may not be equally attracted to all genders, and the degree of attraction may vary as sexual identity develops over time.
- Transgender: a term that refers to trans people who live permanently in their true gender without the necessity for medical intervention/s. Until recently, this was the primary umbrella term for all trans individuals, but the use is now losing favour to the term 'trans,' which is perceived to be more inclusive of all trans communities.

- Intersex: intersex people are born with physical or biological sex characteristics such as sexual anatomy, reproductive organs, hormonal patterns, and/or chromosomal patterns that differ from standard male and female definitions. These characteristics can be seen from birth or later in life, most commonly during puberty. Intersex people can be of any sexual orientation or gender identity.
- **LGBTQIA+:** A blanket term that refers to people who identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual, and/or trans, queer, intersex and asexual.
- Kito: a Nigerian slang for extortion of money or other valuables from queer people by threatening to expose them to their families, friends, or community. It is a type of homophobic violence meant to control and threaten queer people.
- Gender identity: each person's deeply felt internal and individual experience of gender, which may or may not correspond with the sex assigned at birth, and includes the personal sense of the body (which may involve, if freely chosen, modification of bodily appearance or function by medical, surgical, or other means) and other expressions of gender, such as dress, speech, and mannerisms.
- **Gender expression:** each person's presentation of gender through physical appearance—including dress, hairstyles, accessories, and cosmetics—and mannerisms, speech, behavioural patterns, names, and personal references, with the caveat that gender expression may or may not conform to a person's gender identity.

- **Sexual orientation:** An inherent or immutable enduring emotional, romantic, sexual or relational attraction to another person; it may be a same-sex orientation, opposite-sex orientation or bisexual orientation. It is not to be confused with sexual preference, which is what a person likes or prefers to do sexually; a conscious recognition of choice.
- **Sex characteristics:** each individual's sexrelated physical features, such as genitalia and other sexual and reproductive anatomy, chromosomes, hormones, and secondary physical features emerging from puberty.
- Outing: Exposing someone's sexual orientation as being lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgender, without their permission; in essence, "outing them from the closet". Outing someone is considered invasive and disrespectful and may have serious employment/economic/safety/ religious repercussions in some societies or situations.
- Coming out: The process where a person acknowledges, accepts, and appreciates their sexual orientation and gender identity and begins to voluntarily share this information with others.
- Homophobia: The fear and hatred of or discomfort with homosexuals usually based on negative stereotypes of homosexuality. These prejudices can manifest in different forms, leading to discrimination, violence, and systemic inequalities.

- Transphobia: The fear and hatred of, or discomfort with others because of their actual or perceived gender identity or expression. These prejudices can manifest in different forms, leading to discrimination, violence, and systemic inequalities.
- State actors: These are employees or agents of the government or those acting pursuant to governmental authority, acting in their capacities as such.. State governors, legislators, officers and employees of state agencies, policemen, prosecutors, judges and the like are all state actors when discharging their official duties.
- Non-state actors: are individuals or organizations who have social, political & economical power to influence but they are not affiliated with, directed by, or funded through the government. Examples are individuals/civilians, private agencies/companies, religious institutions, property owners, and non-governmental organizations.

STATISTICS



VIOLATED PEOPI

\(\sigma\)
Cis Man 850
<u>o</u>

Von Binary **50**











Trans Noman

















LEAST FOUR STATES WITH VIOLATION GASE



JOS KATSINA YOBE EKITI

ENUGU LAGOS **ABUJA** ΟΜ



TOTAL NUMBER OF VIOLATIONS

NON-STATE ACTORS (PERPETRATORS)

> STATE ACTORS (PERPETRATORS)



NON-STATE ACTORS **BOTH STATE &** (PERPETRATORS)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Pertinent Abbreviations	5
Glossary of Terms	6
Introduction	10
Legal Framework	11
Methodology	15
Trends In Violations Against Lgbtqia+ People In 2023	17
Types Of Violations	20
Forms Of Violations	21
Case Studies	22
Trends In Violations Against Women And Girls In Nigeria	27
National Case Summary	29
Recommendations	56
About Us and Partners	57
Acknowledgement	61
Appendix	62

INTRODUCTION

The Initiative for Equal Rights (TIERs) has been documenting the many times that sexual and gender minorities in Nigeria have had their human rights violated since 2015. Human rights violations like these are caused by laws in the country that are unfair to lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, queer, intersex and asexual (LGBTQIA+) people. Nigeria still has a lot of problems with human rights violations and homophobia and transphobia that are taught in schools. Even though the Constitution says that people cannot or should not be treated differently because of their tribe, religion, gender, social class, or language or tribal ties, this situation still exists. Section 17 of the Nigerian Constitution also says that freedom, equality, and fairness will be used to promote good government and the well-being of all people. These basic goals and rules are based on democracy ideas of progress and including everyone. But this is not true for many Nigerians, especially women and people of different sexual and gender identities.

The rights of women and LGBTQIA+ persons are severely restricted by a variety of state and federal laws, which profoundly affects their daily lives and their ability to achieve social justice. The ongoing effort to document human rights violations in Nigeria based on sexual orientation, gender identity/expression, and sex characteristics (SOGIESC) in 2023 by the LGBTQIA+ rights groups in Nigeria is a continuation of that work. The report details abuses perpetrated by both state and nonstate actors against sexual and gender minorities. Additionally, it delves into the ways in which the Nigerian Constitution addresses gender, sexuality, and law, illuminating the extent to which nondiscriminatory policies and regulations fail to address exclusion in Nigerian society.

Inequality in Nigeria begins from the lack of recognition of gender equality in the Constitution. This fundamental law has different standards

for men and women in terms of citizenship and promotes male dominance and the gender binary. Anti-discriminatory provisions do not include sexual orientation and sex characteristics, and the Constitution consistently adopts gendered language without considering gender diversity. This supports the widespread societal belief that women and sexual minorities remain subordinate to cisgender heterosexual men.

People have used gender and sexuality to exclude others from access to healthcare services, land ownership, economic opportunities, education, employment and leadership opportunities, among others. LGBTQIA+ persons face severe stigma, bullying, harassment, physical and psychological violence, and limited access to social services. In this reporting year, state actors have continued in their relentless efforts to repress online and offline freedom of expression of Nigerians, including LGBTQIA+ people by the proposed bill to regulate contents posted on social media in June 2023. According to Balarabe Ilelah, the Director-General of the NBC, social media is a "monster", hence the need for the proposed bill.

This report lays its foundation by outlining the laws governing SOGIESC rights in Nigeria and Nigeria's responsibilities in safeguarding the rights of LGBTQIA+ persons. It discusses and analyses forms of violence perpetrated against LGBTQIA+ persons in the country as reported to and documented by human rights organisations from December 2022 to November 2023. It also examines the trends in these abuses against LGBTQIA+ persons and women in Nigeria. It ends by providing vital recommendations to the Government, the National Human Rights Commission (NHRC), the Nigerian Police Force and civil society organisations on how the fundamental human rights of LGBTQIA+ persons can be protected and promoted.

LEGAL FRAMEWORK

Lin Nigeria have undergone changes involving the criminalization of same-sex acts among consenting adults and the proposal to legislate cross dressing¹.

In the country, there are a minimum of four legal frameworks that criminalise non-heteronormative sexual practices. Some of these laws are the Same Sex Marriage (Prohibition) Law 2007 of Lagos State, the Armed Forces Act², Sharia Penal Code Laws applicable in Zamfara, Borno, Bauchi, Gombe, Jigawa, Kebbi, Kaduna, Kano, Katsina, Niger, Sokoto, and Yobe states;³ the Prostitution and Immoral Acts (Prohibition) Law of Kano State 2000;⁴ and the Prostitution, Lesbianism, Homosexuality, Operation of Brothels, and Other Sexual Immoralities (Prohibition) Law 2000 of Borno State.⁵

All of the above-stated punitive laws, with the exception of the Sharia Penal Code Laws, are pale in comparison to the SSMPA 2014, which not only criminalizes same-sex activities but also criminalizes same-sex marriages direct or indirect public show of same-sex 'amorous' relationships.

Despite these constraints, the Nigerian Constitution affirms fundamental rights and freedoms for all citizens, in accordance with global human rights instruments like the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, and the International

Covenant on Economic, Social, and Cultural Rights. Particularly noteworthy is Section 39 of the Constitution, which protects the right to freedom of expression, encompassing the liberty to hold opinions and communicate information without any form of interference.

The Constitution also guarantees the rights to freedom of assembly and association and other salient rights, including the rights to life, privacy, dignity, freedom of thought, conscience, and religion, and freedom of movement. Despite these provisions, the Same Sex Marriage Prohibition Act impedes on the rights to registration and operation of LGBTQIA+ organizations in Nigeria. In October 2022, a federal high court in Lagos declared Sections 4 (1), 5 (2), and 5 (3) of the SSMPA unconstitutional, however, this judgment remains to be implemented, as LGBTQIA+ persons and organisations still contend with the infringement of their constitutional rights to freedom of expression and association in Nigeria. This change came about following the success of the case challenging the Same-Sex Marriage Prohibition Act (SSMPA), championed by LGBTQIA+ rights organizations in the country.

Apart from the Nigerian constitution, there are a number of other national, regional, and international legal frameworks that protect the rights of persons in Nigeria regardless of their sexual orientation, gender identity, expressions, or sex characteristics.

¹ Itaborahy LP, Zhu J. A world survey of laws: criminalisation, protection and recognition of same-sex love. Geneva: International Lesbian Gay Bisexual Trans and Intersex Association; 2014. [Google Scholar]

² CAP A20 of the Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004. The offences in this Act as in section 81 are similar to those criminalized in the Criminal and Penal Codes.

³ These provisions/laws are enforced by the states morality police (Hisbah).

 $^{\ \, 4\, \}hbox{This law targets sex workers, transgender persons and cross-dressers.}$

⁵ The Initiative for Equal Rights, 'Discriminating against persons based on their sexual orientation and gender identity in Nigeria – Bad Laws: A compendium on discriminatory laws' https://theinitiativeforequalrights.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/Compenduim-of-Law-.pdf

LEGAL FRAMEWORK

The proceeding paragraphs of this unit expound on some of these provisions.

The Violence Against Persons (Prohibition) Act, 2015

The 7th National Assembly enacted the Violence Against Persons (Prohibition) Act in 2015 (the VAPP Act) after years of civil society engagement and lobbying. The VAPP aims for holistic prevention and response for a wide range of people. Its Explanatory Memorandum states thus:

"This Act prohibits all forms of violence against persons in private and public life and provides maximum protection and effective remedies for victims and punishment of offenders."

This law has not received nationwide application as states need to adopt its provisions through their state legislatures for it to apply locally. That has not happened across the country, leaving persons exposed to violence without opportunity for redress and holding perpetrators accountable. Nonetheless, this protective framework is the first law to expand the scope of statutes criminalising rape in the country. Before the enactment of the VAPP Act, the only legal definitions of rape existed in the Criminal Code and Penal Code Act. For instance, the Criminal Code defines rape as:

"having unlawful carnal knowledge of a woman or girl, without her consent, or with her consent, if the consent is obtained by force or by means of threats or intimidation of any kind, or by fear of harm, or by means of the false act, or, in case of a married woman, by impersonating her husband." On the other hand, section 282 of the Penal Code Act states that;

A man is said to commit rape who, except in the case referred to in subsection (2) of this section, has sexual intercourse with a woman in any of the following circumstances:

- (a) against her will;
- (b) without her consent;
- (c) with her consent, when her consent has been obtained by putting her in fear of death or of hurt:
- (d) with her consent, when the man knows that he is not her husband and that her consent is given because she believes that he is another man to whom she is or believes herself to be lawfully married:
- (e) with or without her consent, when she is under fourteen years of age or of unsound mind.
- (2) Sexual intercourse by a man with his own wife is not rape, if she has attained to puberty.

These two laws and the criminal laws of various states only recognise men as possible perpetrators of rape and only women and girls as potential victims. The VAPP Act expands on these by acknowledging that rape can be perpetrated by anyone, within and outside the confines of intimate relationships. The Act states:

A person commits the offence of rape if he or she intentionally penetrates the vagina, anus or mouth of another person with any other part of his/her body or anything else without consent, or the consent is obtained by force.

Here, rape is the penetration of any opening in the body of any person (male or female) with any part of the body or object. The legislation protects men and boys in cases of sexual violence. Although the VAPP Act does not explicitly mention "LGBTQIA+ persons", but by the provisions of the 1999 Constitution on non-discrimination and other fundamental rights, all persons, regardless of their SOGIESCs should be able access justice when their rights are violated. All that is required is for law enforcement to implement these laws and adhere to their provisions.

The Regional Framework on LGBTQIA+ Peoples' Rights

The African Charter on Human and Peoples' Rights

The African Charter on Human and Peoples' Rights (the Charter) is perhaps the most important human rights document within the African human rights systems. The Charter guarantees freedom from discrimination, equal protection and equality before the law, the liberty and security of persons within its region, the right to dignity, and freedom of association.

Article 2 of the Charter provides that:

Every individual should be entitled to the enjoyment of the rights and freedoms recognised and guaranteed in the present Charter without the distinction of any kind; such as race, ethnic group, colour, sex, language, religion, political or any other opinion, national and social origin, or other status.

The African Commission on Human and Peoples' Rights (African Commission), tasked with overseeing adherence to the African Charter, has clarified that the term "other status" can be construed to encompass factors beyond those explicitly outlined in Article 2. Moreover, the commission has denounced discrimination. In Nigeria, the African Charter on Human and Peoples'

Rights (Ratification and Enforcement) Act of 1990 has accorded full legal authority to the Charter. Consequently, the Charter holds binding force in all courts and jurisdictions within Nigeria.

The increased violence against LGBTQIA+ persons raised concerns with the African Commission, leading to a landmark resolution termed the "Protection against Violence and other human rights violations against Persons based on their Real or Imputed Sexual orientation or Gender Identity" at its 55th session. The Resolution condemns violence based on actual or imputed sexual orientation and gender identity/expression. The African Commission also called on States to stop all forms of violence committed by state and nonstate actors and enact and implement laws that condemn discrimination, prejudice, and violence regardless of sexual orientation or gender identity.

Resolution 275 strongly encourages states to cease all acts of violence and abuse perpetrated by either state or non-state actors. Recommended measures include the enactment and effective application of suitable laws that prohibit and penalize all manifestations of violence, specifically addressing those directed at individuals due to their sexual orientation and gender identity/expression. Additionally, governments are urged to guarantee thorough investigations and diligent prosecution of perpetrators while establishing judicial procedures that are responsive to the needs of victims.

Another notable instrument is the Protocol to the African Charter on Human and Peoples' Rights on the Rights of Women in Africa, commonly known as the Maputo Protocol. This protocol delineates the rights of women in various areas, including inheritance, marriage, property, and sexual and reproductive health and rights. It's important to note that Nigeria has not yet domesticated the Maputo Protocol, and this omission has significant implications for the well-being of lesbian, bisexual,

LEGAL FRAMEWORK

pansexual, transgender, and queer women in Nigeria.

The International Law Framework on SOGIESC Rights

Article 1 of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights provides that everyone is born free and equal.⁶ Globally, it has been widely acknowledged that the categories of discrimination explicitly outlined in the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (ICCPR) and the International Covenant on Economic, Social, and Cultural Rights (ICESCR) are not exhaustive.

The term "other status" encompasses sexual orientation and/or gender identity and expression. Consequently, international human rights laws are universally applicable to individuals within the LGBTQIA+ community, irrespective of their location, such as those residing in Nigeria, who are entitled to holistic protection of their rights accorded under these laws.

In 2006, the Yogyakarta Principles were established as a set of guidelines for the application of international human rights laws to matters of sexual orientation and gender identity/expression⁷. These principles were crafted and unanimously endorsed by esteemed human rights experts with diverse backgrounds, including judges and academics from various regions. The principles comprehensively address a range of rights,

including non-discrimination and legal recognition, human and personal security, economic, social, and cultural rights, freedom of expression, opinion, and association, freedom of movement and asylum, as well as participation in cultural and family life. Additionally, the principles emphasize the protection of human rights defenders.

In addition, the United Nations Human Rights Council has adopted two resolutions on the rights of LGBTQIA+ persons. Its 2011 Resolution on Human Rights, Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity requested the United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights to commission a study on discriminatory laws and practices affecting LGBTQIA+ people worldwide. The Human Rights Council subsequently requested that the High Commissioner update the earlier report to share good practices and ways of overcoming violence and discrimination.

These international treaties, conventions, resolutions, and reports reiterate the principle of non-discrimination and strongly oppose violence based on SOGIESC at a global level. They echo the message that people do not earn fundamental rights by conformity or other means, but these rights accrue to everyone without exception.

⁶ All human beings are born free and equal in dignity and rights. They are endowed with reason and conscience and should act towards one another in a spirit of brotherhood.

⁷ See the Yogyakarta Principles and the Yogyakarta Principles plus 10 here: https://yogyakartaprinciples.org/, accessed 1 December 20222.

METHODOLOGY

In this report, we have compiled instances of human rights violations in Nigeria, drawing from information gathered, verified, and addressed by various human rights organizations. Survivors, victims, eyewitnesses, and other individuals have reported a total of 996 cases of human rights abuses to the networks of these organizations, which subsequently verified the authenticity of these cases:

- 1. Access to Good Health Initiative (AGHI)
- 2. Hope Alive Health Awareness (HAHAI)
- 3. Improved Sexual Health and Rights Advocacy Initiative (ISHRAI)
- 4. Initiative for Improved Male Health (I-IMH)
- 5. International Centre for Advocacy on Rights to Health (ICARH)
- 6. Kito Diaries (KD)
- Total Health Empowerment and Development Initiative (THEDI)
- 8. Women's Health and Equal Rights Initiative (WHER)
- 9. Men's Health Support Initiative MHSI NG
- 10. Initiative for Sexual Reproductive Health and Rights Awareness (ISRHRA)
- 11. Achievers Improved Health Initiative (AIHI)
- 12. Initiative for Gender Equality Health and Rights GEHAR-I
- 13. Initiative for Gender Equality and Sexual Reproductive Health (IGE-SRH)
- 14. Community health initiative for youths in Nigeria

- 15. Excellent Improved Reach Out Initiative (EIR INITIATIVE)
- 16. International Centre for Total Health and Rights Advocacy Empowerment ICTHARAE
- 17. Access To Health And Rights Development Initiative (AHRDI)
- 18. Responsive Action for Sustainable Empowerment Initiative
- 19. Creme de la Creme House of Fame Foundation
- 20. Response to Health and Right Initiative (RHRI)
- 21. Wavemakers Initiative for Health and Youth Empowerment (WIHYE)
- 22. Initiative for the Advancement of Improved Health and Development (I-AIHD)

In the year 2022, TIERs collaborated with 8 partners in the documentation of cases throughout Nigeria. Subsequently, in 2023, the augmentation of partnering entities from 8 to 26 was undertaken to enhance comprehensive coverage and nuanced portrayal of the precarious human rights situation confronted by sexual and gender minorities in Nigeria. The addition in partner numbers is presumed to have contributed significantly to the number of human rights violation cases delineated in the 2023 report. Notably, the recorded cases escalated from 521 in 2021 to 545 in 2022, reaching a disconcerting figure of 996 in 2023. Of this total, 166 instances were documented in Enugu, designating Enugu state as the region with the highest incidence of violations for the reporting period, closely trailed by Imo state with 162 cases. This scenario prompts a requisite for further scholarly inquiry to ascertain whether the upswing in recorded violations in Enugu and Imo State⁸ can be ascribed to the amplification

METHODOLOGY

in reporting partnerships or is indicative of other factors such as the ongoing political unrest in the southeastern region of Nigeria, warranting a thorough exploration.

The documented cases under consideration are factual occurrences, notwithstanding the disproportionately minimal reporting of abuse and violence within the demographic comprising women, transgender individuals, and intersex people. Consistent with analyses articulated in antecedent reports, the prevailing circumstance persists not due to a diminished frequency of rights infringements against these individuals, but rather emanates from intricate societal frameworks that have engendered multifaceted layers of oppression. This intricate web of oppression has, in turn, fostered a pronounced culture of reticence concerning the disclosure or discourse of matters and transgressions impacting these specific groups. It is imperative to note that pseudonyms have been employed in reference to all survivors and victims whose cases are documented within the confines of this report.

The complete national case summaries are not 100% representative of all the experiences and realities of LGBTQIA+ people in Nigeria. It is a fact that more violations happen to LGBTQIA+ persons in Nigeria than what survivors report or are otherwise documented. Instead, these reported cases reflect the issues LGBTQIA+ activists and organizations could record in their capacity, despite numerous reporting challenges. The challenges include limited human and material resources, institutionalized homophobia, repressive laws, including the recent move to criminalize crossdressing nationally, and lack of information and awareness on the part of rights holders. The discriminatory laws, societal attitudes, and further abuse by law enforcement drastically reduce any encouragement for survivors to report crimes and violations.

⁸ ISSAfrica.org. (2022, May 3). Violence in Nigeria's south-east demands a holistic response - ISS Africa. ISS Africa. https://issafrica.org/iss-today/violence-in-nigerias-south-east-demands-a-holistic-response

TRENDS IN VIOLATIONS AGAINST LGBTQIA+ PEOPLE IN 2023

The rights of LGBTQIA+ individuals in Nigeria has been under scrutiny before the enactment of the Same-Sex Marriage Prohibition Act (SSMPA) in 2014. Dating back to the colonial era, laws such as the Criminal Code and the Penal Code Act criminalize same-sex acts between consenting adults. In 12 out of 36 states in Nigeria, 'the sharia penal code laws established in 1999, further escalate the severity of penalties to include death. In 2014, the passage of the SSMPA resulted in a significant surge of violence against people of diverse sexual orientations, gender identities and expressions by state and non-state actors across the country.

Over the past nine years, reports compiled by TIERs and its partners have consistently highlighted human rights violations against Nigerians who are LGBTQIA+ or perceived to be. This year, we documented the highest number of cases of violations against people based on their real or perceived sexual orientation, gender identity and expression. Perpetrators continue to be emboldened by hate speech in media and religious institutions and the scapegoating of LGBTQIA+ people through anti-LGBT legislation.

Human rights violations range from mass arrests under false pretences of a gay marriage, illegal stops and searches, extortion, kidnapping, mob violence, blackmail, assault & battery, theft, rape, invasion of privacy, conversion practices, forceful eviction, wrongful dismissal, discrimination in every aspect of society, and various forms of harassment from state and non state actors. The location and the socio-economic class of individuals involved significantly influence the experiences and severity of these violations. Law enforcement agents misinterpret laws to target persons belonging to lower economic classes who appear to have no

inside contacts to call for immediate release. The victim is harassed, detained and often tortured until they are desperate enough to raise the illegal bail money that has been set as the condition for their release.

Lesbian, Bisexual, Transgender, and Queer women face consistent violations such as blackmail, forced marriage, conversion practices, sexual assault, physical assault, forceful eviction, unlawful dismissal, financial abuse and other violations when outed to family members. Conversion practices are acts conducted by religious institutions, mental health institutions and other community based groups that attempt to change one's sexual orientation, gender identity and expression and sex characteristics to fit society's preferred heterosexual cisgender identity. These violent acts can often range from talk therapy, forced confinement, physical assault, starvation, sexual assault and so on. There is no scientific proof that one's sexual orientation or gender identity can be changed which makes it improper medical practice for any mental health institution that offers to conduct it. This explains why the practice is more prevalent among religious institutions.

Gay, Bisexual and Queer men are most susceptible to a violation locally termed Kito. A kito experience may involve being catfished online by a man. The perpetrator typically lures the queer person to a private location where the victim is ambushed by multiple men. During which they may proceed to physically or sexually assault the victim, blackmail and extort them, and out them to their family members and work places, which then opens them up to being kicked out and rendered homeless and financially incapacitated, withdrawn from school or wrongfully dismissed from work. This trend in

TRENDS IN VIOLATIONS AGAINST LGBTQIA+ PEOPLE IN 2023

violations is increasing exponentially, as more men and boys see it as a quick way to make money.

Lesbian, Bisexual, Transgender and Queer Women are also susceptible to being kito(ed). In violations against LBQ women, the perpetrator pretends to be a woman or employs someone to lead the victim on and lure them out to be beaten, robbed, blackmailed, extorted, outed, sexually abused and humiliated, often by men who claim to be law enforcement agents. We have identified low reporting rates among LBQ women, likely due to low conviction rates for sexual and gender based violence and the absence of justice for survivors of gender based violence coupled with harsh anti-LGBTQIA+ laws and a patriarchal homophobic, biphobic and transphobic general public.

A disturbingly increasing trend persists where Gay, Bisexual and Queer men kito other Gay, Bisexual and Queer men under the illusion and permission of heteronormativity - which insists that everyone who does not conform to cis heteronormativity is worthy of any and all kinds of human rights violations, often starting from assault and battery and always ending at extortion. There is often no way to avoid being kito(ed) when navigating online and physical dating spaces, as someone who is a confirmed member of the queer community can take advantage of the existing systematic homophobic structures such as a nonchalant and biased police force, anti-LGBTQIA+ legislation, violent and negative public perception of LGBTQIA+ people and a general apathy toward the human rights violations faced by people of diverse sexual orientations, gender identities and expressions in order to extort people abuse other queer men.

Raids, illegal stops and searches, arbitrary arrests and extortion by Hisbah, Police and other law enforcement agencies are a rapidly increasing trend in Nigeria as observed over the past four years. When LGBTQIA+ people, especially trans and gender non-conforming people convene, their gatherings are raided and falsely labelled to be a "gay marriage" in official records and public statements. This is never the case, and on multiple occasions the victims were said to be attending birthday parties and their actual crime is expressing their fundamental human right to assemble while being gender non-conforming. They are often paraded, illegally detained and extorted for "bail" money. Bail is supposedly free, however the amount required to secure one's release often sits at a price point that is unattainable for the detainee. This was seen in several cases across the country this year such as in Kano, a mass arrest that occurred in January; in Delta with 69 people arrested in August; in Bauchi with 76 arrested in October; on one occasion, in Edo State, a particularly violent raid was conducted in August at a one-stop shop health facility and people in attendance for a training were arrested.

In addition to being at risk for all the violations listed above, Trans Women, Trans Men, Non-Binary people and gender non-conforming people face increasing occurrences of harassment, discrimination, physical and sexual assault, and mob violence from members of their community such as family members, area boys, church members, potential employees, healthcare workers, teachers and administrators, neighbours, landlords, sexual partners and online connections to mention a few. This leaves many members of this community without proper education, access to decent paying work, healthcare, housing, family support and a sense of community and belonging.

TRENDS IN VIOLATIONS AGAINST LGBTQIA+ PEOPLE IN 2023

Another consistent trend of violation is the forceful eviction of LGBTQIA+ people once they are outed to their family members via kito, blackmail or intentional coming out. This is often followed by them being cut off financially, and is preceded by various conversion practices. Being rendered homeless opens them up to further violence such as sexual assault, assault and battery, theft, harassment and discrimination from community members and intimate partners. This form of abandonment is in direct contravention of the Violence Against Persons Prohibition Act (2015),

however, due to inadequate domestication and implementation of the Act and the existence of discriminatory anti-LGBTQIA+ laws, individuals are often left without access to education, means of sustenance or access to justice.

For an analysis of the human rights violations based on real or perceived sexual orientation or gender identity reported to human rights organizations between December 2022 and November 2023, see below:

Types of VIOLATIONS

















































FORMS OF VIOLATIONS

The year 2023 bore witness to a distressing surge in human rights violations targeting LGBTQIA+ individuals in Nigeria. These recorded violations not only spotlight the continual hardships faced by this marginalized community but also underscore the systemic challenges exacerbated by societal prejudices and discriminatory laws entrenched within the country.

Throughout the reporting period, LGBTQIA+ individuals encountered a distressing array of human rights violations with 996 recorded cases. This is the highest number we have ever recorded which signifies the increasing vulnerability of the LGBTQIA+ community within the society. The multifaceted nature of these recorded violations unmasked the persistence of discrimination and violence targeting LGBTQIA+ individuals, perpetrated both by state actors and non-state entities.

Physical violence remained a harrowing reality with reported incidents of assault and battery perpetrated by a spectrum of actors, including non-state and state entities. This form of aggression inflicted severe physical harm on LGBTQIA+ individuals, accentuating their susceptibility to violence within the societal fabric.

Another alarming trend that persisted was the nefarious practice of blackmail. Exploiting personal information or perceived sexual orientations, perpetrators coerced and extorted victims, perpetuating an environment of fear and vulnerability within the LGBTQIA+ community.

Furthermore, the insidious recurrence of 'Kito' continued to afflict the community, accounting for 65 instances accompanied with physical abuse and extortion. This deceptive form of violence ensnared LGBTQIA+ individuals through deceitful online interactions, subjecting them to harrowing situations involving sexual assault, physical abuse, torture, invasion of privacy and threat of murder.

Systemic discrimination against LGBTQIA+ persons persisted, evident in more than 70% of documented cases across diverse societal spheres. Instances of harassment exemplified the hostile milieu that individuals faced solely based on their sexual orientation or gender identity.

The roster of violations expanded to include not just physical harm and discrimination but also theft, forceful eviction, outing, and unlawful dismissal. Perpetrated predominantly by non-state actors such as landlords, employers, family members, and authoritative figures, these violations exacerbated the challenges faced by the LGBTQIA+ community in Nigeria.

The prevailing fear of stigma, further violence, and discrimination impeded LGBTQIA+ individuals from seeking redress. Government agencies, including law enforcement, often exhibited a lack of willingness or capacity to address these violations, further complicating the plight of the community. In some cases, violations such as arbitrary arrests, extortion, unlawful detainment and physical abuse have been perpetrated by the police who act in direct contravention of laws within the Nigerian Constitution.

These recorded violations serve as a distressing reminder of the entrenched societal biases and legal impediments that continually undermine the rights and safety of LGBTQIA+ individuals in Nigeria. Urgent action through comprehensive legal reforms and concerted efforts to combat discrimination and violence against this community remains imperative for a more equitable and inclusive society.

CASE STUDIES

Trigger warning: This section contains graphic descriptions of violations reported to TIERs and other human rights organisations this year. Some of the descriptions may be disturbing to read. All names have been changed to protect the identities of the victims/survivors.

ARBITRARY ARREST, UNLAWFUL DETENTION, TORTURE

The Law

Section 36(1) of the Nigerian constitution states that

1) "In the determination of his civil rights and obligations, including any question or determination by or against any government or authority, a person shall be entitled to a fair hearing within a reasonable time by a court or other tribunal established by law and constituted in such manner as to secure its independence and impartiality."

Section 364 (2) of the Criminal Code states:

2) "Any person who — unlawfully imprisons any person within Nigeria in such a manner as to prevent him from applying to a court for his release or from discovering to any other person the place where he is imprisoned, or in such a manner as to prevent any person entitled to have access to him from discovering the place where he is imprisoned; is guilty of a felony and is liable to imprisonment for ten years."

Section 37 (1a & 1b) of the Police Act states:

"A suspect shall- (a) be accorded humane treatment, having regard to his right to the dignity of his person; and (b) not be subjected to any form of torture, cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment"

Section 62 (1) of the Police Act states:

62.-(1) Where a suspect has been taken into police custody without a warrant for an offence other than an offence punishable with death, an officer in charge of a police station shall inquire into the case and release the suspect arrested on bail subject to subsection (2), and where it will not be practicable to bring the suspect before a court having jurisdiction with respect to the offence alleged, within 24 hours after the arrest.

Section 34(1) of the Nigerian constitution states that:

"Every individual is entitled to respect for the dignity of his person, and accordingly – (a) no person shall be subject to torture or to inhuman or degrading treatment;"

Section 2 of the Anti Torture Act states that

"For the purpose of this Act, torture includes;vii) rape and sexual abuse, including the insertion of foreign bodies into the sex organs or rectum or electrical torture of the genitals, (viii) other forms of sexual abuse,

Section 3 (1) of the Anti Torture Act states that:

(I) No exceptional circumstances whatsoever, whether a state of war or a threat ofwar. Internal political instability or any other public emergency, may be invoked as a justification for torture.

VIOLATION CASES

Case One

At about 2am on Sunday 27th of August 2023, the Ekpan Police Division Warri Delta state raided an "All White Party" in Tibullus Hotel, resulting in over 80 arrests, injuries to escaping individuals, and the hospitalization of two individuals who sustained major injuries. This raid and arrest was based on allegations that the "All White Party" was a "Gay Wedding", although unfactual. On the 29th of August the police paraded 69 men in a press conference carried out by the Police Public Relations Officer at the premises of the Ekpan Police Divisional Headquarters and the police made allegations of a "Gay Wedding". The Police, however, did not charge nor present the 69 detainees before a court of competent jurisdiction until the 4th day of September, 2023, which is outside of the period allowed by law. The detainees were forcefully coerced to have their anus and rectum examined. with pictures taken by the police officers.

Case Two

On the 26th of May 2023 at about 11:30 pm, Temi and Kate were headed to a party being held in Lekki Lagos when their cab was stopped by the 3 police officers along Osbourne Road Bridge for routine search. When the police officers failed to find any substance on them after the search, they proceeded to harass Temi and Kate for their outfits. However, Temi was singled out for dressing like a woman and taken to Adeniji Police Station in Ikoyi, where they were kept overnight in a cell. At 5am on the 27th of May, Temi was released after being made to pay the sum of 50,000 naira.

KIDNAPPING, BLACKMAIL & EXTORTION

The Law

Section 365 of the criminal code specifies kidnapping as criminal offenses

"Any person who unlawfully confines or detains another against his will or otherwise unlawfully deprives another of his personal liberty is guilty of a misdemeanor and liable to imprisonment of two years."

Section 408 of the Criminal Code specifies blackmail and extortion as criminal offenses:

Any person who, with intent to extort or gain anything from any person accuses or threatens to accuse any person of committing any felony or misdemeanor, or of offering or making any solicitation or threat to any person as an inducement to commit or permit the commission of any felony or misdemeanor; or threatens that any person shall he accused by any other person of any felony or misdemeanor, or of any such act; or knowing the contents of the writing, causes any person to receive any writing containing any such accusation or threat as aforesaid; is guilty of a felony... the offender is liable to imprisonment for three years. It is immaterial whether the person accused or threatened to be accused has or has not committed the offense or act of which he is accused or threatened to be accused.

VIOLATION CASES

Case One

Efe was invited to the apartment of a potential partner he met on Tinder named Emma. On the 5th of March 2023, Efe paid a visit to Emma. Efe and Emma were together in Emma's apartment when 3 men barged in with phones held in their hands, making a video of them. Emma stood up from the scene and joined the 3 men who barged in, making Efe realise that he was set up by Emma. Efe was hindered from leaving the apartment by these men and confined to the apartment, where he was slapped and threatened with cutlass to make a confessionary video admitting to being "gay". The men threatened to release the video as well as putting out information about him being a "gay" man on social media. Efe was forced to make a transfer of 100.000 naira to one of their bank accounts before he was released.

Case Two

On the 1st of April 2023, Afam went on a visit to Chris' apartment in Jakande, Lagos. Afam and Chris met on Grindr, and they had been chatting for some weeks prior to the visit. When Afam got into Chris' apartment, he found a group of 3 men lying in wait for him. They immediately detained him by overpowering him. These men forced him to strip his clothes and make a confessionary video admitting to being "gay" and to have been caught in the act of sexual intercourse with a man. Chris informed Afam that the video they made of him was ammunition to ensure that Afam does not expose their group and their activities on the internet. The four men proceeded to force Afam to

open his bank apps and to transfer a total sum of 157,000 Naira to one of their bank accounts before he was let go.

DISCRIMINATION & ASSAULT

The Law

Section 42(1) of the Nigerian constitution specifies for discrimination and states that:

"A citizen of Nigeria of a particular community, ethnic group, place of origin, sex, religion or political opinion shall not, by reason only that he is such a person:—

(a) be subjected either expressly by, or in the practical application of, any law in force in Nigeria or any executive or administrative action of the government, to disabilities or restrictions to which citizens of Nigeria of other communities, ethnic groups, places of origin, sex, religions or political opinions are not made subject; or"

Sections 252 and 253 of the Criminal Code specifies for assault and states that:

252) "A person who strikes, touches, or moves, or otherwise applies force of any kind to, the person of another, either directly or indirectly, without his consent, or with his consent, if the consent is obtained by fraud, or who by any bodily act or gesture attempts or threatens to apply force of any kind to the person of another without his consent, in such circumstances that the person making the attempt or threat has actually or apparently a

present ability to effect his purpose, is said to assault that other person, and the act is called an assault. The term "applies force" includes the case of applying heat, light, electrical force, gas, odour, or any other substance of whatever, if applied to such a degree as to cause injury or personal discomfort.

253) An assault is unlawful and constitutes an offence unless it is authorised or justified or excused by law. The application of force by one person to the person of another may be unlawful, although it is done with the consent of that other person.

VIOLATION CASES

Case One

On the 22nd of January 2023, Ada, a trans woman was making a call and squatted in front of a bush located beside her house in Igbolomo Ikorodu. A man who came out from the street adjacent to where gift was squatting, walked up to her and said "I don't want to see you gay people in this area". Upon hearing this, Ada decided to walk away from the man because it was an obvious case of homophobia and she didn't want to face any violence. The man followed Ada as she walked away. Ada decided to put on her camera to capture anything that could go on. At this point, the man became furious that Ada was making a video and asked her to stop making a video. He then hit and punched her with so much force that her phone fell down. As she picked up her phone, he used a stick to hit her on her head and she started bleeding. Ada stood up and punched him back. He grabbed

her hair and pulled it while hitting her. Ada began screaming due the intense pain she felt from the pulling of her hair and her screams attracted others to come. The man's wife and son came out and joined him in beating Ada. After a short while, Ada's friends came to her rescue and removed her from their grasp.

Ada quickly went to Owotu police station in Igbolomo to report the incident but on getting there the policeman who attended to her called her "gay" and said that on no account will he go with Ada to the scene of the incident. However, two other police women attended to her. They wrote her a police medical request form, insisting it's important she go treat herself first. Ada left the police station but upon getting to the junction of her street, the perpetrator, in company of 5 neighborhood vigilantes accosted her again. These 5 vigilante men proceeded to punch and slap Ada, after which they took her back to the police station. On getting to the police station again, they were all asked to write a statement and told to return the next day for further investigation on the case.

On the 23rd of January, Ada got to the police station and was informed by the Investigating Police Officer (IPO) to settle with the perpetrator, and that her continued insistence on taking the case up, will result in the police station charging the two of them for fighting and constituting public nuisance. The IPO spoke only in favor of the perpetrator, stating that Ada was a troublemaker and the perpetrator was right in his actions. Ada was disparaged for being a 'gay" and castigated for her appearance by the police officers. Ada and the perpetrator were

CASE STUDIES

held in a cell until Ada agreed to the decision to settle with the perpetrator and for the perpetuator to pay Ada's medical bill. They were both released after this agreement was signed.

Case Two

Community thugs have been threatening Bami (they/them) in Ajah where they live together with their partner, Tania. The community thugs made comments on how Bami and Tania have never been seen with men. These community thugs would harass them whenever they go to buy fuel and make comments like, "We go find man give you". In February 2023, it escalated as these community thugs would peep through Bami and Tania's windows to threaten them with "giving

them a man". On 19 March 2023, Bami and Tania were chased by a crowd of community thugs and other residents of the community on their way to purchase fuel. They were stoned, and had to jump a fence which caused them to sustain some minor injuries. Bami and Tania became scared to go back and live in their apartment as a result of the mob attack. Although they reported the incident to the police, the police did not do anything about it. Bami and Tania became homeless as a result of this incident.

TRENDS IN VIOLATIONS AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS IN NIGERIA

In 2023, Nigeria continues to grapple with the multifaceted challenge of violence against women and girls, reflecting a complex interplay of cultural, economic, and political factors. Domestic violence remains a pervasive issue affecting women across Nigeria. Economic strains and social pressures contribute to an environment where abusive behavior is normalized. In Nigeria, this issue has been a significant concern, with various forms of violence being reported, including physical, sexual, or intimate-partner violence. However, violence against marginalised women (female sex workers, women with disabilities, LBTQIA+ women etc) seems to be under emphasised.

According to a report by the United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF), violence against women and girls is one of the most widespread, persistent, and devastating human rights violations in the world. The report highlights that one in three women experience physical, sexual, or intimate-partner violence, are victims of trafficking, or are subject to violent social norms.⁹

In 2023, the United Nations Women reported that 14% of women in Nigeria had experienced physical violence¹⁰. This statistic is alarming, considering that it only accounts for reported cases. Many incidents

of violence go unreported due to various factors, including fear of retaliation, stigma, and lack of trust in the authorities. ¹¹

Female sex workers in Nigeria face a high risk of violence. A study conducted in 2023 revealed that the majority of female sex workers had experienced job-related violence, including physical attacks and sexual abuse¹². These women often find themselves in vulnerable situations due to their work's illegal status and societal stigma¹³.

Women and girls living with disabilities are almost twice as likely to experience gender-based violence than women and girls without disabilities. They often live in communities already affected by the socio-economic impacts of various crises, amid increased tensions that provide opportunities for perpetrators to engage in abusive behaviour¹⁴.

The Initiative for Equal Rights (TIERs) and other partner organisations recorded a total of 204 human rights violations against LBTQI+ women in Nigeria in 2023. This number only captures reported cases, as a large percentage of violence against marginalised women are unreported. The violence against LBTQIA+ women is often backed with the Same-Sex Marriage Prohibition Act,

- 9 https://www.unicef.org/nigeria/reports/16-facts-about-violence-against-women-and-girls-nigeria
- 10 https://guardian.ng/news/14-nigerian-women-experience-physical-violence/
- 11 https://www.unicef.org/nigeria/reports/ending-violence-against-children-nigeria
- 12 https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/african-studies-review/article/abs/constituting-the-unsafe-nigerian-sex-workers-notions-of-unsafe-sexual-conduct/D1B2ABF26C350DF9D89FAF90F7B1A67A
- 13 https://nigeria.un.org/sites/default/files/2020-05/Gender%20Based%20Violence%20in%20Nigeria%20During%20COVID%2019%20Crisis_The%20 Shadow%20Pandemic.pdf
- $14 \quad https://www.womenforwomen.org/sites/default/files/2022-09/825-WfW\%20PolicyBriefs_Nigeria_Final2.pdf$
- 15 https://nigeriarights.gov.ng/focus-areas/women-and-gender-matters.html

TRENDS IN VIOLATIONS AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS IN NIGERIA

which is offers state sanctioned violence against LGBTQIA+ people.

There are several laws and legal frameworks in Nigeria that aim to protect the rights of women and girls:

- Constitution of the Federal Republic of Nigeria (Fundamental Human Rights): This is the supreme law of the country and it guarantees fundamental human rights to all citizens.
- Child Rights Act: This law provides for the protection of the child in Nigeria.
- Violence Against Persons Prohibition Act: Also known as the VAPP Act, it is designed to tackle all forms of violence against persons in private and public life, and provide maximum protection and effective remedies for victims and punishment of offenders.
- Sexual Offences Act: This law provides legal provisions against sexual offences.
- Administration of Criminal Justice Act: This law provides for the administration of criminal justice in courts.
- Criminal Code and Penal Code: These laws contain various provisions that protect women and girls from harmful practices.

In addition to these national laws, Nigeria is a signatory to several international conventions and norms such as the Convention on the Elimination of all forms of Discrimination Against Women, the African Charter on Human and Peoples' Rights, the African Charter on the Rights and Welfare of the Child, and the Protocol to the ACHPR on the Rights of Women in Africa.

The prevalence of violence against women and girls, particularly those from marginalised groups, is a pressing issue in Nigeria. It is crucial for stakeholders, including the government, nongovernmental organisations, and the society at large, to take collective action in addressing this problem. Efforts should be geared towards creating safe spaces, enforcing laws that protect women and girls, and promoting societal attitudes that respect and uphold the rights of all women and girls.

(December 2022 - November 2023)

S/N	DATE OF INCIDENCE	CASE TYPOLOGY	PERPETRATORS	LOCATION	REPORTING ORGANIZATION
		December	2022		
1	1/12/2022	Harassment	Non State Actors	Edo	EIR-INITIATIVE
2	1/12/2022	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
3	1/12/2022	Assault	State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
4	2/12/2022	Assault & Battery, Outing	Non State Actors	Rivers	TIERs
5	2/12/2022	Extortion	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
6	3/12/2022	Harassment, Discrimination, Assault & Battery, Arbitrary Arrest	State Actors	Kano	AIHI
7	3/12/2022	Arbitrary Arrest, Detention	State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
8	5/12/2022	Extortion, Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
9	5/12/2022	Unlawful Detention, Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
10	6/12/2022	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Conversion Practices	State Actors	Kano	AIHI
11	6/12/2022	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
12	7/12/2022	Theft	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
13	7/12/2022	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
14	8/12/2022	Assault	Non State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
15	10/12/2022	Arbitrary Arrest, Detention	State Actors	Niger	ICARH
16	11/12/2022	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention and Invasion of privacy.	State Actors	Kano	AIHI
17	12/12/2022	Assault & Battery, Financial Abuse, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Kano	AIHI
18	12/12/2022	Assault & Battery, Theft, Kito	Non State Actors	Ekiti	ARDHI
19	12/12/2022	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
20	12/12/2022	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
21	14/12/2022	Arbitrary Arrest, Detention	State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
22	15/12/2022	Blackmail, Extortion, Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	CDLC
23	15/12/2022	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Invasion of Privacy, Forceful Eviction.	State Actors	Kano	AIHI
24	15/12/2022	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
25	16/12/2022	Assault & Battery, Theft, Outing, Kito	State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
26	16/12/2022	Extortion	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
27	17/12/2022	Extortion, Arbitrary Arrest, Detention	State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
28	17/12/2022	Blackmail, Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
29	18/12/2022	Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
30	19/12/2022	Arbitrary Arrest	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
31	20/12/2022	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
32	21/12/2022	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
33	22/12/2022	Sexual Assault, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Kano	AIHI

34	22/12/2022	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
35	22/12/2022	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
36	23/12/2022	Blackmail, Extortion, Harassment, Outing	Non State Actors	Osun	I-AIHD
37	23/12/2022	Arbitrary Arrest	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
38	24/12/2022	Arbitrary Arrest, Blackmail, Extortion	State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
39	24/12/2022	Extortion, Blackmail	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
40	29/12/2022	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
41	30/12/2022	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Extortion	State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I
42	31/12/2022	Harassment, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs

January 2023

43	1/1/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion	Non State Actors	lmo	Kito Diaries
44	1/1/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion, Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	Kito Diaries
45	1/1/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Abia	Kito Diaries
46	1/1/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries
47	1/1/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion	Non State Actors	lmo	Kito Diaries
48	1/1/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries
49	1/1/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion	Non State Actors	Rivers	Kito Diaries
50	1/1/2023	Unlawful Detention, Arbitrary Arrest, Extortion, Discrimination	State Actors	Kano	AlHI
51	1/1/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Gombe	CDLC
52	1/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
53	1/1/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
54	2/1/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Blackmail, Extortion	State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
55	2/1/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Extortion, Discrimination, Invasion of Privacy	State & Non State Actors	Lagos	RASE-I
56	2/1/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
57	3/1/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
58	3/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
59	4/1/2023	Threat to Life, Extortion, Blackmail, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
60	4/1/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Extortion and Theft.	State Actors	Kano	AlHI
61	4/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
62	4/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Anambra	AGHI
63	5/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
64	5/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
65	6/1/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
66	6/1/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH

67	6/1/2023	Discrimination, Arbitrary Arrest, Detention	State & Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
68	6/1/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
69	6/1/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
70	6/1/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
71	6/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
72	7/1/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
73	7/1/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Kaduna	CDLC
74	7/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
75	8/1/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
76	8/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
77	9/1/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
78	9/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
79	9/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
80	9/1/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
81	9/1/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
82	11/1/2023	Discrimination, Outing, Assault & Battery, Forceful Eviction	State & Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
83	11/1/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Kaduna	CDLC
84	12/1/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
85	16/1/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
86	17/1/2023	Harassment, Discrimination, Assault & Battery	State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
87	17/1/2023	Forceful Eviction, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Ogun	I-AIHD
88	17/1/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
89	17/1/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
90	17/1/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
91	18/1/2023	Forceful Eviction, Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion, Threat to Life, Kito	Non State Actors	Gombe	RASE-I
92	18/1/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
93	19/1/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Anambra	AGHI
94	20/1/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
95	20/1/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
96	20/1/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
97	20/1/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
98	21/1/2023	Unlawful Dismissal	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
99	22/1/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
100	22/1/2023	Assault & Battery, Discrimination, Arbitrary Arrest	State & Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
101	22/1/2023	Harassment, Discrimination, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
102	22/1/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
103	23/1/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Detention	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
104	24/1/2023	Discrimination, Assault & Battery, Outing, Harassment, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Abuja	TIERs

105	25/1/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
106	25/1/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
107	26/1/2023	Unlawful Dismissal	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
108	30/1/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Extortion	State Actors	lmo	MHSI NG
109	30/1/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Extortion	State Actors	lmo	MHSI NG
110	30/1/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I
111	31/1/2023	Kito, Extortion, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI

February 2023

	1 Coldary 2023						
112	1/2/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries		
113	1/2/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries		
114	1/2/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries		
115	1/2/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Theft	Non State Actors	lmo	Kito Diaries		
116	1/2/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Cross River	Kito Diaries		
117	1/2/2023	Theft, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	Kito Diaries		
118	1/2/2023	Assault & Battery, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Delta	IGE-SRH		
119	1/2/2023	Forceful Eviction, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Rivers	IGE-SRH		
120	1/2/2023	Forceful Eviction, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI		
121	2/2/2023	Assault & Battery, Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Rivers	IGE-SRH		
122	2/2/2023	Forceful Eviction, Sexual Harassment, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Akwa Ibom	IGE-SRH		
123	2/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI		
124	2/2/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI		
125	3/2/2023	Assault, Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH		
126	3/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI		
127	3/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI		
128	4/2/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Kano	CDLC		
129	4/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI		
130	4/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI		
131	5/2/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Extortion	State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI		
132	5/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI		
133	5/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI		
134	5/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI		
135	6/2/2023	Assault & Battery, Kito	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI		
136	6/2/2023	Discrimination, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI		
137	7/2/2023	Assault	State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH		
138	7/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI		

139	7/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
140	8/2/2023	Harassment, Assault	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
141	8/2/2023	Assault & Battery, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Kano	AIHI
142	8/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Imo	CDLC
143	8/2/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
144	8/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
145	8/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
146	11/2/2023	Threat to Life, Assault & Battery, Kito	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI
147	12/2/2023	Harassment, Discrimination	Non State Actors		ISHRAI
	12/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Lagos	AGHI
148				Imo	
149	12/2/2023	Discrimination Court Account	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
150	13/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
151	14/2/2023	Unlawful Detention, Extortion	State Actors	Ekiti	ARDHI
152	14/2/2023	Kidnapping, Sexual Harassment, Extortion	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
153	14/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
154	14/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
155	14/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
156	14/2/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
157	15/2/2023	Invasion of Privacy, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
158	15/2/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
159	15/2/2023	Sexual Assault, Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
160	15/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
161	15/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
162	16/2/2023	Forceful Eviction, Invasion of Privacy, Harassment, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Edo	EIR-INITIATIVE
163	16/2/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
164	16/2/2023	Extortion, Assault	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
165	16/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
166	17/2/2023	Discrimination, Outing, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
167	17/2/2023	Extortion, Arbitrary Arrest	State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
168	17/2/2023	Blackmail, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
169	17/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
170	17/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
171	18/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
172	18/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
173	18/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
174	18/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
175	19/2/2023	Invasion of Privacy, Extortion	State Actors	Oyo	I-AIHD
176	19/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
177	19/2/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
178	19/2/2023	Assault & Battery	State Actors	Abia	AGHI
179	19/2/2023	Assault & Battery, Theft, Mob Violence, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI

180	19/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
181	19/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
182	19/2/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
183	19/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
184	20/2/2023	Forceful Eviction, Discrimination, Sexual Harassment	Non State Actors	Lagos	IGE-SRH
185	20/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
186	20/2/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
187	20/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
188	20/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
189	20/2/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
190	20/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Benue	CDLC
191	20/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
192	20/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
193	21/2/2023	Outing, Assault & Battery, Financial Abuse	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
194	21/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
195	21/2/2023	Discrimination, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
196	21/2/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
197	22/2/2023	Discrimination, Outing, Sexual Assault, Financial Abuse	Non State Actors	Rivers	TIERs
198	22/2/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
199	22/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
200	23/2/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
201	23/2/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
202	23/2/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
203	24/2/2023	Extortion, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
204	24/2/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
205	25/2/2023	Blackmail, Assault & Battery, Kito	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
206	25/2/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
207	26/2/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
208	27/2/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
209	28/2/2023	Forceful Eviction, Harassment, Discrimination, Assault & Battery, Mob Violence	Non State Actors	Ogun	ISRHRA
210	28/2/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
211	28/2/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I

March 2023

212	1/3/2023	Discrimination	State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
213	1/3/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries
214	1/3/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion	State & Non State Actors	Anambra	Kito Diaries
215	1/3/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Theft	Non State Actors	lmo	Kito Diaries

216	1/3/2023	Assault & Battery, Outing	Non State Actors	Rivers	Kito Diaries
217	1/3/2023	Theft, Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	Kito Diaries
218	1/3/2023	Blackmail, Extortion, Sexual Harassment, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
219	1/3/2023	Kidnapping, Extortion	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
220	1/3/2023	Assault & Battery, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
221	1/3/2023	Blackmail, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
222	1/3/2023	Forceful Eviction, Assault	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
223	2/3/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
224	2/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
225	3/3/2023	Harassment, Assault & Battery, Theft, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Anambra	TIERs
226	3/3/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
227	4/3/2023	Discrimination, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Abuja	TIERs
228	4/3/2023	Outing, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Osun	I-AIHD
229	4/3/2023	Harassment, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	CDLC
230	4/3/2023	Assault, Threat to Life. Blackmail, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
231	5/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
232	6/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
233	7/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
234	7/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
235	8/3/2023	Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion, Threat to Life, Kito	Non State Actors	Kaduna	WIHYE
236	8/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
237	8/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
238	9/3/2023	Blackmail, Kito	Non State Actors	Gombe	RASE-I
239	9/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
240	10/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
241	10/3/2023	Blackmail, Extortion, Kito	Non State Actors	Kano	AlHI
242	10/3/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
243	11/3/2023	Invasion of Privacy, Conversion Practices	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
244	11/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
245	12/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
246	12/3/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
247	13/3/2023	Sexual Assault, Theft	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
248	14/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
249	14/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
250	14/3/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
251	14/3/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
252	15/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
253	15/3/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Abia	AGHI
254	15/3/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
255	15/3/2023	Extortion, Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH

256	15/3/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
257	16/3/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Abuja	WHER
258	16/3/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
259	16/3/2023	Blackmail, Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
260	17/3/2023	Invasion of Privacy, Conversion Practices, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
261	17/3/2023	Assault & Battery	State Actors	Abia	AGHI
262	17/3/2023	Discrimination	State Actors	Abuja	CDLC
263	18/3/2023	Discrimination, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Edo	EIR-INITIATIVE
264	18/3/2023	Blackmail, Assault & Battery	State Actors	Gombe	RASE-I
265	18/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
266	18/3/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
267	18/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
268	19/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
269	19/3/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
270	19/3/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
271	19/3/2023	Forceful Eviction, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
272	19/3/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
273	20/3/2023	Outing, Harassment, Discrimination, Conversion Practices	Non State Actors	Akwa Ibom	TIERs
274	20/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
275	20/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
276	21/3/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Extortion	State Actors	Akwa Ibom	IGE-SRH
277	21/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
278	21/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
279	21/3/2023	Blackmail, Arbitrary Arrest	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
280	22/3/2023	Harassment, Extortion, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
281	22/3/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
282	22/3/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
283	22/3/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
284	22/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
285	23/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
286	23/3/2023	Outing, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
287	23/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
288	23/3/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
289	24/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
290	24/3/2023	Mob Violence	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
291	24/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
292	25/3/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
293	25/3/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
294	25/3/2023	Theft	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
295	25/3/2023	Assault, Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH

296	25/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
297	26/3/2023	Harassment, Invasion of Privacy	State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
298	26/3/2023	Forceful Eviction, Outing and Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
299	26/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
300	26/3/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
301	27/3/2023	Forceful Eviction, Financial Abuse, Outing, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Cross River	IGE-SRH
302	27/3/2023	Blackmail, Extortion	Non State Actors	Benin Republic	TIERs
303	27/3/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
304	27/3/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
305	27/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
306	27/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
307	28/3/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Akwa Ibom	TIERs
308	28/3/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
309	30/3/2023	Forceful Eviction, Financial Abuse, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Akwa Ibom	IGE-SRH
310	30/3/2023	Harassment, Discrimination	State Actors	Benue	TIERs
311	30/3/2023	Harassment, Mob Violence, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
312	30/3/2023	Harassment, Extortion, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
313	30/3/2023	Sexual Harassment	Non State Actors	Abuja	CDLC
314	30/3/2023	Theft	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
315	30/3/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Bauchi	CDLC
316	30/3/2023	Assault & Battery, Harassment	Non State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I

April 2023

317	1/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries
318	1/4/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Anambra	Kito Diaries
319	1/4/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Abia	AGHI
320	1/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
321	2/4/2023	Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Kito, Extortion	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
322	2/4/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
323	2/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
324	2/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
325	2/4/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
326	3/4/2023	Conversion Practices, Extortion	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
327	3/4/2023	Theft, Invasion of Privacy	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
328	3/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
329	4/4/2023	Extortion, Blackmail, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
330	4/4/2023	Sexual Assault, Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH

331	4/4/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
332	4/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
333	4/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
334	4/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
335	5/4/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	TIERs
336	5/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
337	5/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
338	6/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
339	7/4/2023	Outing, Mob Violence	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
340	7/4/2023	Extortion, Harassment	State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
341	7/4/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
342	7/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
343	7/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
344	8/4/2023	Kidnapping, Extortion, Invasion of privacy	State Actors	lmo	TIERs
345	8/4/2023	Blackmail, Extortion	Non State Actors	Kano	AIHI
346	8/4/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Abuja	CDLC
347	9/4/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
348	9/4/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
349	9/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
350	10/4/2023	Threat to Life, Harassment	Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
351	10/4/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
352	10/4/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
353	11/4/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
354	11/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
355	12/4/2023	Forceful Eviction, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I
356	12/4/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
357	12/4/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
358	12/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
359	13/4/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
360	14/4/2023	Harassment, Forceful Eviction, Discrmination	Non State Actors	Abuja	TIERs
361	14/4/2023	Blackmail, Extortion, Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
362	14/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
363	14/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
364	14/4/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
365	15/4/2023	Assault & Battery, Kidnapping, Extortion, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
366	15/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
367	15/4/2023	Discrimination, Harassment, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
368	15/4/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
369	15/4/2023	Assault & Battery	State Actors	Abia	AGHI
370	15/4/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI

371	15/4/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
372	15/4/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
373	15/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
374	16/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
375	16/4/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
376	16/4/2023	Arbitrary Arrest	State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
377	16/4/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
378	17/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
379	17/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
380	18/4/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
381	18/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
382	18/4/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
383	18/4/2023	Assault, Extortion	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
384	18/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
385	19/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
386	19/4/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
387	19/4/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
388	19/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
389	19/4/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
390	19/4/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Niger	ICARH
391	20/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
392	20/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
393	20/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
394	20/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
395	21/4/2023	Harassment, Assault & Battery, Arbitrary Arrest	State Actors	Benue	TIERs
396	21/4/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
397	21/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
398	22/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
399	22/4/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
400	22/4/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
401	23/4/2023	Harassment, Assault & Battery, Discrimination	State Actors	Gombe	RASE-I
402	23/4/2023	Assault & Battery, Harassment	Non State Actors	Anambra	TIERs
403	23/4/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Cross River	CDLC
404	24/4/2023	Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
405	24/4/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
406	25/4/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
407	25/4/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
408	26/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
409	26/4/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
410	27/4/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
411	27/4/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI

412	27/4/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Harassment, Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
413	27/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
414	27/4/2023	Harassment	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
415	29/4/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
416	30/4/2023	Assault & Battery, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I

May 2023

A17 1/5/2023 Kito, Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion Non State Actors Lagos Kito Diaries		_				
August A	417	1/5/2023		Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries
419 I/5/2023 to Life, Blackmail Non State Actors Detta Nito Dianes 420 1/5/2023 Kito, Assault & Battery, Extortion, Threat to Life Non State Actors Rivers Kito Diaries 421 1/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Kidnapping, Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Lagos ISHRAI 422 1/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 423 1/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 424 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Immo MHSI NG 425 2/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Immo AGHI 426 2/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 427 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 428 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 430 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Lagos RHRI </td <td>418</td> <td>1/5/2023</td> <td>Blackmail</td> <td>Non State Actors</td> <td>Lagos</td> <td>Kito Diaries</td>	418	1/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries
to Life Assault & Battery, Kidnapping, Extortion, Kito Aghl Agh	419	1/5/2023	-	Non State Actors	Delta	Kito Diaries
1/5/2023 Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Enugu AGH	420	1/5/2023	-	Non State Actors	Rivers	Kito Diaries
423 1/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 424 2/5/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Extortion State Actors Imo MHSI NG 425 2/5/2023 Forceful Eviction, Discrimination, Assault & Battery Non State Actors Cross River IGE-SRH 426 2/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Imo AGHI 427 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 428 2/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Enugu AGHI 429 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 430 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 431 3/5/2023 Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Abia AGHI 432 3/5/2023 Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Abia AGHI 433 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery State Actors Abia AGHI 434	421	1/5/2023		Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
424 2/5/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Extortion State Actors Imo MHSI NG 425 2/5/2023 Forceful Eviction, Discrimination, Assault & Battery 426 2/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Imo AGHI 427 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 428 2/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Enugu AGHI 429 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 430 3/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 431 3/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 432 3/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 433 3/5/2023 Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 434 Non State Actors Abia AGHI 435 3/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 436 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Delta TIERs 437 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 438 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Abia AGHI 439 5/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Delta TIERs 430 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Kano AIHI 431 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Abia AGHI 432 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 433 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 434 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 435 A/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Abia AGHI 440 5/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Abia AGHI 441 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery 442 Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 443 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery 444 Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 445 Assault & Battery 446 Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 447 Assault & Battery 448 Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 449 Assault & Battery 440 Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 441 Assament, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction 443 Non State Actors Abuja WHER	422	1/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
425 2/5/2023 Forceful Eviction, Discrimination, Assault & Battery Non State Actors Cross River IGE-SRH 426 2/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Imo AGHI 427 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 428 2/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Enugu AGHI 429 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 430 3/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 431 3/5/2023 Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 432 3/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 433 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery State Actors Abia AGHI 434 4/5/2023 Discrimination, Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Delta TIERs 435 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 436 4/5/2023	423	1/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
426 2/5/2023 & Battery Non State Actors Cross River Icg-SHH 426 2/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Imo AGHI 427 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 428 2/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Enugu AGHI 429 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 430 3/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 431 3/5/2023 Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 432 3/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 433 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery State Actors Abia AGHI 434 4/5/2023 Outing, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Imo AGHI 435 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 436 4/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Mob Violen	424	2/5/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Extortion	State Actors	Imo	MHSI NG
427 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 428 2/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Enugu AGHI 429 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 430 3/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Lagos TIERS 431 3/5/2023 Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 432 3/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 433 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery State Actors Abia AGHI 434 4/5/2023 Outing, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Delta TIERS 435 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 436 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 437 5/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Kano AIHI 438 5/5/2023 Extortion </td <td>425</td> <td>2/5/2023</td> <td></td> <td>Non State Actors</td> <td>Cross River</td> <td>IGE-SRH</td>	425	2/5/2023		Non State Actors	Cross River	IGE-SRH
428 2/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Enugu AGHI 429 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 430 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 431 3/5/2023 Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Abia AGHI 432 3/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 433 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery State Actors Abia AGHI 434 4/5/2023 Outing, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Delta TIERs 435 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 436 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 437 5/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Kano AIHI 438 5/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Abia AGHI 439 5/5/2023<	426	2/5/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
429 2/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 430 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion, Kito 431 3/5/2023 Extortion, Kito Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 432 3/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 433 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery State Actors Abia AGHI 434 4/5/2023 Outing, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Delta TIERs 435 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 436 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 437 5/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Kano AIHI 438 5/5/2023 Discrimination, Harassment Non State Actors Abia AGHI 439 5/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Abia AGHI 440 5/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Abia AGHI 441 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Abia AGHI 442 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 443 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 444 6/5/2023 Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Enugu WHER 445 6/5/2023 Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Abuja WHER	427	2/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion, Kito Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion, Non State Actors Eagos RHRI Assault Assault & Battery Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI	428	2/5/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
Kito Kon State Actors Kito Kito Kon State Actors Kon AGHI Kon State Actors Kon AGHI Kon State Actors Kon AGHI Kon State Actors Kon AIHI Kon State Actors Kon AGHI Kon State Actors Kon AIHI Kon State Actors Kon AIHI Kon State Actors Kon AGHI Kon State Actors Kon State Actors Kon AGHI	429	2/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
432 3/5/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 433 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery State Actors Abia AGHI 434 4/5/2023 Outing, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Delta TIERs 435 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 436 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 437 5/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Kano AIHI 438 5/5/2023 Discrimination, Harassment Non State Actors Abuja CDLC 439 5/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Abia AGHI 440 5/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 441 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 442 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 443 6/5/2023 Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Enugu WHER	430	3/5/2023		Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
433 3/5/2023 Assault & Battery State Actors Abia AGHI 434 4/5/2023 Outing, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Delta TIERs 435 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 436 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 437 5/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Kano AIHI 438 5/5/2023 Discrimination, Harassment Non State Actors Abuja CDLC 439 5/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Abia AGHI 440 5/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 441 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 442 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 443 6/5/2023 Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Enugu WHER	431	3/5/2023	Extortion, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
4344/5/2023Outing, Discrimination, Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsDeltaTIERs4354/5/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsImoAGHI4364/5/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI4375/5/2023Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, OutingNon State ActorsKanoAIHI4385/5/2023Discrimination, HarassmentNon State ActorsAbujaCDLC4395/5/2023ExtortionState ActorsAbiaAGHI4405/5/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI4416/5/2023Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosTIERs4426/5/2023Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosRHRI4436/5/2023Harassment, Discrimination, Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguWHER4446/5/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsAbujaWHER	432	3/5/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
435 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 436 4/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 437 5/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Kano AIHI 438 5/5/2023 Discrimination, Harassment Non State Actors Abuja CDLC 439 5/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Abia AGHI 440 5/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 441 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 442 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 443 6/5/2023 Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Enugu WHER	433	3/5/2023	Assault & Battery	State Actors	Abia	AGHI
4364/5/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI4375/5/2023Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, OutingNon State ActorsKanoAlHI4385/5/2023Discrimination, HarassmentNon State ActorsAbujaCDLC4395/5/2023ExtortionState ActorsAbiaAGHI4405/5/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI4416/5/2023Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosTIERs4426/5/2023Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosRHRI4436/5/2023Harassment, Discrimination, Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguWHER4446/5/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsAbujaWHER	434	4/5/2023	Outing, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Delta	TIERs
437 5/5/2023 Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing Non State Actors Kano AlHI 438 5/5/2023 Discrimination, Harassment Non State Actors Abuja CDLC 439 5/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Abia AGHI 440 5/5/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 441 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 442 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 443 6/5/2023 Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Enugu WHER	435	4/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
4385/5/2023Discrimination, HarassmentNon State ActorsAbujaCDLC4395/5/2023ExtortionState ActorsAbiaAGHI4405/5/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI4416/5/2023Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosTIERs4426/5/2023Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosRHRI4436/5/2023Harassment, Discrimination, Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguWHER4446/5/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsAbujaWHER	436	4/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
4395/5/2023ExtortionState ActorsAbiaAGHI4405/5/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI4416/5/2023Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosTIERs4426/5/2023Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosRHRI4436/5/2023Harassment, Discrimination, Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguWHER4446/5/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsAbujaWHER	437	5/5/2023	Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Outing	Non State Actors	Kano	AlHI
4405/5/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI4416/5/2023Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosTIERs4426/5/2023Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosRHRI4436/5/2023Harassment, Discrimination, Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguWHER4446/5/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsAbujaWHER	438	5/5/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Abuja	CDLC
441 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 442 6/5/2023 Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 443 6/5/2023 Harassment, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Enugu WHER 444 6/5/2023 Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Abuja WHER	439	5/5/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Abia	AGHI
4426/5/2023Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosRHRI4436/5/2023Harassment, Discrimination, Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguWHER4446/5/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsAbujaWHER	440	5/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
443 6/5/2023 Harassment, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Enugu WHER 444 6/5/2023 Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Abuja WHER	441	6/5/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
Eviction Non State Actors Enugu WHER 444 6/5/2023 Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Abuja WHER	442	6/5/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
	443	6/5/2023		Non State Actors	Enugu	WHER
445 6/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Enugu AGHI	444	6/5/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Abuja	WHER
	445	6/5/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
446 6/5/2023 Extortion State Actors Enugu AGHI	446	6/5/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI

447	6/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
448	6/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
449	6/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
450	7/5/2023	Sexual Assault, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
451	7/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
452	7/5/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
453	7/5/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
454	8/5/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
455	8/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
456	8/5/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
457	8/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
458	8/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
459	9/5/2023	Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
460	9/5/2023	Extortion, Harassment	State Actors	Kano	AlHI
461	9/5/2023	Arbitrary Arrest	State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
462	9/5/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
463	10/5/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI
464	10/5/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
465	10/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
466	11/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
467	11/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Anambra	AGHI
468	12/5/2023	Assault & Battery, Mob Violence, Theft, Outing	Non State Actors	Edo	ARDHI
469	12/5/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
470	12/5/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
471	12/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
472	12/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
473	12/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
474	13/5/2023	Assault & Battery, Harassment, Invasion of Privacy	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
475	13/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
476	13/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
477	13/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
478	13/5/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
479	14/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
480	15/5/2023	Harassment, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Edo	EIR-INITIATIVE
481	15/5/2023	Assault & Battery, Theft	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
482	15/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
483	17/5/2023	Outing, Assault & Battery, Forced Isolation, Conversion practices	Non State Actors	Osun	TIERs
484	17/5/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
485	17/5/2023	Forceful Eviction, Discrimination	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
486	17/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI

487	18/5/2023	Sexual Assault, Outing, Theft, Forceful Eviction, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
488	18/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
489	18/5/2023	Assault, Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
490	19/5/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
491	19/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
492	20/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
493	20/5/2023	Sexual Harassment	Non State Actors	Abuja	CDLC
494	20/5/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
495	20/5/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
496	20/5/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
497	20/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
498	21/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
499	22/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
500	22/5/2023	Assault & Battery, Sexual Assault	State & Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
501	22/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
502	23/5/2023	Outing, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Cross River	TIERs
503	23/5/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Niger	CDLC
504	24/5/2023	Assault & Battery, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Oyo	TIERs
505	24/5/2023	Discrimination, Assault	Non State Actors	Delta	TIERs
506	24/5/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
507	24/5/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
508	24/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
509	25/5/2023	Assault, Discrimination, Outing, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Ondo	ICTHARAE
510	26/5/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Detention, Extortion	State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
511	26/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
512	27/5/2023	Unlawful Dismissal, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
513	27/5/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
514	27/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
515	27/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
516	28/5/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
517	28/5/2023	Assault & Battery, Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Invasion of Privacy, Extortion	State Actors	Kaduna	WIHYE
518	28/5/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
519	28/5/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
520	29/5/2023	Outing, Conversion Practices, Assault & Battery, Emotional abuse	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
521	29/5/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Osun	CDLC
522	30/5/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
523	30/5/2023	Sexual Harassment	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
524	30/5/2023	Assault & Battery, Harassment	Non State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I

June 2023

525	1/6/2023	Blackmail, Extortion	Non State Actors	Gombe	RASE-I
526	1/6/2023	Blackmail, Outing, Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISRHRA
527	2/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
528	3/6/2023	Assault, Blackmail, Extortion, Theft, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
529	3/6/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
530	3/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
531	3/6/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
532	3/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
533	4/6/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
534	4/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
535	5/6/2023	Assault & Battery, Harassment, Discrimination, Invasion of Privacy	Non State Actors	Edo	EIR-INITIATIVE
536	5/6/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
537	5/6/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
538	5/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
539	7/6/2023	Harassment	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
540	7/6/2023	Forceful Eviction, Theft, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
541	7/6/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
542	7/6/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
543	7/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
544	7/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
545	8/6/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
546	8/6/2023	Assault, Extortion	State Actors	Niger	ICARH
547	8/6/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
548	8/6/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
549	9/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
550	10/6/2023	Extortion, Assault	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
551	11/6/2023	Threat to Life, Assault & Battery, Theft	Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
552	11/6/2023	Harassment, Assault & Battery, Theft	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
553	12/6/2023	Discrimination, Assault & Battery, Mob Violence	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
554	13/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
555	13/6/2023	Theft	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
556	13/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
557	13/6/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
558	14/6/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
559	15/6/2023	Conversion Practices, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
560	15/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
561	15/6/2023	Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
562	15/6/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
563	15/6/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI

564	16/6/2023	Harassment, Discrimination, Extortion, Invasion of Privacy	State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
565	16/6/2023	Extortion, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
566	16/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
567	17/6/2023	Discrimination, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Akwa Ibom	TIERs
568	17/6/2023	Sexual Harassment	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
569	17/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
570	17/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
571	18/6/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Abuja	WHER
572	18/6/2023	Sexual Harassment, Theft, Threat to Life, Harassment	Non State Actors	Benue	TIERs
573	18/6/2023	Unlawful Detention, Extortion	State Actors	Oyo	I-AIHD
574	18/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
575	19/6/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I
576	19/6/2023	Blackmail, Extortion, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
577	19/6/2023	Discrimination, Harassment, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
578	19/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
579	20/6/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
580	20/6/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
581	21/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
582	21/6/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
583	22/6/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I
584	22/6/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
585	22/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
586	23/6/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
587	23/6/2023	Blackmail, Extortion, Sexual Assault, Outing	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
588	23/6/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Ondo	CDLC
589	23/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
590	24/6/2023	Assault & Battery, Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Abuja	WHER
591	24/6/2023	Discrimination, Harassment, Extortion, Invasion of Privacy	State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
592	24/6/2023	Harassment, Invasion of Privacy, Unlawful Detention	State Actors		TIERs
593	24/6/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
594	25/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
595	25/6/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
596	25/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
597	26/6/2023	Outing	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
598	26/6/2023	Outing, Forceful Eviction, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
599	26/6/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Detention	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
600	27/6/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
601	28/6/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI

602	29/6/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Cross River	CDLC
603	30/6/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Kano	CDLC
604	30/6/2023	Assault & Battery, Forceful Eviction, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I

July 2023

Kito, Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion, Threat to Life Non State Actors Lagos Kito Diaries	July 2023								
Extortion, Threat to Life Non State Actors Lagos Kito Diaries	605	1/7/2023	•	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries			
Blackmail, Sexual Assault, Assault & Battery	606	1/7/2023	-	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries			
177/2023 Battery Non State Actors Ogun ISHHRA	607	1/7/2023	Kito, Assault, Extortion	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries			
610 2/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest State Actors Abuja ICARH 611 2/7/2023 Blackmail, Invasion of Privacy, Discrimination Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 612 2/7/2023 Kito, Sexual Assault, Extortion Non State Actors Lagos RHRI 613 2/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 614 2/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 615 2/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 616 3/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 617 3/7/2023 Backmail Non State Actors Abuja ICARH 618 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 619 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 620 3/7/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 621 4/7/2023 Sexual Assault	608	1/7/2023		Non State Actors	Ogun	ISRHRA			
Blackmail, Invasion of Privacy, Discrimination RHRI Blackmail, Invasion of Privacy, Discrimination RHRI Blackmail, Invasion of Privacy, Discrimination Ron State Actors RHRI Blackmail, Invasion of Privacy, Discrimination Ron State Actors RHRI RHH RHRI RHH RHH RHR	609	2/7/2023	Harassment, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Akwa Ibom	TIERs			
Discrimination	610	2/7/2023	Arbitrary Arrest	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH			
613 2/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 614 2/7/2023 Discrimination, Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 615 2/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 616 3/7/2023 Assault Non State Actors Abuja ICARH 617 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 618 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 619 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 620 3/7/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Imo AGHI 621 4/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Outing State Actors Cross River IMH-I 622 5/7/2023 Forceful Eviction, Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos ISHRAI 623 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 624 5/7/2023 <t< td=""><td>611</td><td>2/7/2023</td><td></td><td>Non State Actors</td><td>Lagos</td><td>RHRI</td></t<>	611	2/7/2023		Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI			
614 2/7/2023 Discrimination, Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 615 2/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 616 3/7/2023 Assault Non State Actors Abuja ICARH 617 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Abuja ICARH 618 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 619 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 620 3/7/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 621 4/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Outing State Actors Cross River IMH-I 622 5/7/2023 Forceful Eviction, Assault & Battery Non State Actors Abuja ICARH 623 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 624 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 625 5/7/2023	612	2/7/2023	Kito, Sexual Assault, Extortion	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI			
615 2/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 616 3/7/2023 Assault Non State Actors Abuja ICARH 617 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 618 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 619 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 620 3/7/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 621 4/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Outing State Actors Cross River IMH-I 622 5/7/2023 Forceful Eviction, Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos ISHRAI 623 5/7/2023 Harassment Non State Actors Imo AGHI 624 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 625 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 627 5/7/2023 Extortion	613	2/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			
616 3/7/2023 Assault Non State Actors Abuja ICARH 617 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Abuja ICARH 618 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 619 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 620 3/7/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 621 4/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Outing State Actors Cross River IMH-I 622 5/7/2023 Forceful Eviction, Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos ISHRAI 623 5/7/2023 Harassment Non State Actors Imo AGHI 624 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 625 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 626 5/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 627 6/7/2023 Blackmail	614	2/7/2023	Discrimination, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			
617 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Abuja ICARH 618 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 619 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 620 3/7/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 621 4/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Outing State Actors Lagos ISHRAI 622 5/7/2023 Forceful Eviction, Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos ISHRAI 623 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 624 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 625 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 626 5/7/2023 Discrimination Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 627 5/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 628 6/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 629 6/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 629 6/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 629 6/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 630 7/7/2023 Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, Kito 631 7/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 632 7/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 633 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 634 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 635 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 630 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI	615	2/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI			
Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 3/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 620 3/7/2023 Sexual Assault Non State Actors Abia AGHI 621 4/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Outing State Actors Cross River IMH-I 622 5/7/2023 Forceful Eviction, Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos ISHRAI 623 5/7/2023 Harassment Non State Actors Abuja ICARH 624 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 625 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 626 5/7/2023 Discrimination Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 627 5/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 628 6/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 629 6/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 629 6/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 630 7/7/2023 Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, Kito Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 631 7/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 632 7/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 633 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 634 AGHI 635 AGHI 636 AGHI 637 AGHI 638 AGHI 639 AGHI 630 AGHI 630 AGHI 630 AGHI 631 ARBITRANIANA AGHI 632 ARBITRANIANA AGHI 633 ARBITRANIANA AGHI 634 AGHI 635 AGHI 635 AGHI 636 AGHI 637 AGHI 638 AGHI 639 AGHI 630 AGHI 630 AGHI 630 AGHI 631 ARBITRANIANA AGHI 632 ARBITRANIANA AGHI 633 ARBITRANIANA AGHI 634 AGHI 635 ARBITRANIANA AGHI 645 AGHI 657 AGHI 658 AGHI 658 AGHI 659 AGHI 670 AGHI 670 AGHI 670 AGHI 671 AGHI 671 AGHI 671 AGHI 672 AGHI 672 AGHI 672 AGHI 673 AGHI 673 ARBITRANIANA AGHI 674 AGHI 675 AGHI 675 AGHI 677 AGHI 677 AGHI 677 AGHI 678 AGHI 678 AGHI 679 AGHI 670 AGHI 670 AGHI 670 AGHI 670 AGHI 671 AGHI 671 AGHI 671 AGHI 671 AGHI 672 AGHI 673 AGHI 674 AGHI 675 AGHI 677 AGHI 675 AGHI 677 AGHI 677 AGHI 678 AGHI 678 AGHI 678 AGHI 679 AGHI 670 AGHI 671 AGHI 671 AGHI 671 AGHI 671 AGHI 672 AGHI 673 AGHI 673 AGHI 674 AGHI 675 AGHI 677 AGHI 6	616	3/7/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH			
6193/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsImoAGHI6203/7/2023Sexual AssaultNon State ActorsAbiaAGHI6214/7/2023Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, OutingState ActorsCross RiverIMH-I6225/7/2023Forceful Eviction, Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosISHRAI6235/7/2023HarassmentNon State ActorsAbujaICARH6245/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsImoAGHI6255/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI6265/7/2023DiscriminationNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6275/7/2023ExtortionNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6286/7/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI6296/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsImoAGHI6307/7/2023Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, KitoNon State ActorsLagosTIERs6317/7/2023ExtortionNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6327/7/2023Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful DetentionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI	617	3/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH			
6203/7/2023Sexual AssaultNon State ActorsAbiaAGHI6214/7/2023Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, OutingState ActorsCross RiverIMH-I6225/7/2023Forceful Eviction, Assault & BatteryNon State ActorsLagosISHRAI6235/7/2023HarassmentNon State ActorsAbujaICARH6245/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsImoAGHI6255/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI6265/7/2023DiscriminationNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI6275/7/2023ExtortionNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6286/7/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI6296/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsImoAGHI6307/7/2023Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, KitoNon State ActorsLagosTIERs6317/7/2023ExtortionNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6327/7/2023Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful DetentionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI	618	3/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI			
Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Outing State Actors Cross River IMH-I 622 5/7/2023 Forceful Eviction, Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos ISHRAI 623 5/7/2023 Harassment Non State Actors Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 625 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 626 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 627 5/7/2023 Discrimination Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 628 6/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 629 6/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 630 7/7/2023 Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, Kito Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 631 7/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 632 7/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI Non State Actors Lagos TIERs	619	3/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI			
Outing Outing State Actors Oross River IMIH-I 622 5/7/2023 Forceful Eviction, Assault & Battery Non State Actors Lagos ISHRAI Rossment Non State Actors Abuja ICARH Non State Actors Imo AGHI Rossment Rossment Non State Actors Imo AGHI Rossment Rossment Non State Actors Imo AGHI Rossment Ros	620	3/7/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI			
623 5/7/2023 Harassment Non State Actors Abuja ICARH 624 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 625 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 626 5/7/2023 Discrimination Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 627 5/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 628 6/7/2023 Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 629 6/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 630 7/7/2023 Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, Kito Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 631 7/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 632 7/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 632 7/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 632 7/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI	621	4/7/2023		State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I			
624 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 625 5/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 626 5/7/2023 Discrimination Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 627 5/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 628 6/7/2023 Forceful Eviction Non State Actors Enugu AGHI 629 6/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 630 7/7/2023 Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, Kito Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 631 7/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 632 7/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI	622	5/7/2023	Forceful Eviction, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI			
6255/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsImoAGHI6265/7/2023DiscriminationNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI6275/7/2023ExtortionNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6286/7/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI6296/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsImoAGHI6307/7/2023Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, KitoNon State ActorsLagosTIERs6317/7/2023ExtortionNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6327/7/2023Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful DetentionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI	623	5/7/2023	Harassment	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH			
6265/7/2023DiscriminationNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI6275/7/2023ExtortionNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6286/7/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI6296/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsImoAGHI6307/7/2023Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, KitoNon State ActorsLagosTIERs6317/7/2023ExtortionNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6327/7/2023Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful DetentionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI	624	5/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI			
6275/7/2023ExtortionNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6286/7/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI6296/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsImoAGHI6307/7/2023Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, KitoNon State ActorsLagosTIERs6317/7/2023ExtortionNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6327/7/2023Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful DetentionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI	625	5/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI			
6286/7/2023Forceful EvictionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI6296/7/2023BlackmailNon State ActorsImoAGHI6307/7/2023Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, KitoNon State ActorsLagosTIERs6317/7/2023ExtortionNon State ActorsEbonyiAGHI6327/7/2023Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful DetentionNon State ActorsEnuguAGHI	626	5/7/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			
629 6/7/2023 Blackmail Non State Actors Imo AGHI 630 7/7/2023 Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, Kito Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 631 7/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 632 7/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI	627	5/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI			
630 7/7/2023 Extortion, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, Kito Non State Actors Lagos TIERs 631 7/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 632 7/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI	628	6/7/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			
Kito Non State Actors Lagos HERS 631 7/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI 632 7/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI	629	6/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI			
632 7/7/2023 Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention Non State Actors Enugu AGHI	630	7/7/2023	-	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs			
	631	7/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI			
600 7/7/0000 Plackmail Non-State Actors Imp. ACLIII	632	7/7/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			
033 1/1/2023 DIAUKITIAII INOTI STATE ACTORS IITIO AGHI	633	7/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI			
634 8/7/2023 Assault & Battery, Harassment Non State Actors Lagos TIERs	634	8/7/2023	Assault & Battery, Harassment	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs			
635 8/7/2023 Extortion Non State Actors Ebonyi AGHI	635	8/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI			
636 8/7/2023 Discrimination Non State Actors Fnugu AGHI	636	8/7/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			

	9/7/2023	Outing, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
638	9/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
639	9/7/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
640	9/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
641	10/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
642	11/7/2023	Assault & Battery, Forced Isolation, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Anambra, Imo	WHER
643	12/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
644	12/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
645	13/7/2023	Conversion Practices, Threat to Life, Forced Isolation, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I
646	13/7/2023	45059	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
647	13/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
648	13/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
649	14/7/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
650	14/7/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
651	15/7/2023	Emotional Abuse, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
652	15/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
653	15/7/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
654	15/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
655	16/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
656	16/7/2023	Harassment, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Ondo	CDLC
657	16/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
658	17/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
659	17/7/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
660	17/7/2023	Extortion, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
661	18/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
662	18/7/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Extortion, Assault & Battery	State Actors	Kaduna	WIHYE
663	19/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
664	19/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
665	19/7/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
666	20/7/2023	Assault & Battery, Kito, Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	State & Non State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I
667	20/7/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
668	20/7/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
669	21/7/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
670	21/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
671	21/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
672	21/7/2023	Assault & Battery, Discrimination, Unlawful Detention	Non State Actors	Ondo	ICTHARAE
673	21/7/2023	Sexual Harassment	Non State Actors	Kano	CDLC
674	21/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
675	21/7/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH

676	21/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
677	23/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
678	23/7/2023	Assault & Battery, Harassment	Non State Actors	Ondo	ICTHARAE
679	24/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
680	24/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
681	24/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
682	24/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
683	24/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
684	25/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
685	25/7/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
686	26/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
687	26/7/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
688	26/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
689	27/7/2023	Assault, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Edo	EIR-INITIATIVE
690	27/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
691	27/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
692	27/7/2023	Extortion, Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
693	28/7/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
694	28/7/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
695	29/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
696	29/7/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
697	30/7/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I

August 2023

698	1/8/2023	Theft, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries
699	1/8/2023	Assault & Battery, Unlawful Detention	Non State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I
700	2/8/2023	Discrimination, Sexual Assault, Outing	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
701	2/8/2023	Discrimination, Financial Abuse	Non State Actors	Akwa Ibom	IGE-SRH
702	2/8/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
703	3/8/2023	Kidnapping, Blackmail, Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Delta	TIERs
704	3/8/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Oyo	I-AIHD
705	3/8/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
706	3/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
707	4/8/2023	Theft	Non State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
708	4/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
709	4/8/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
710	5/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
711	6/8/2023	Assault & Battery, Discrimination, Invasion of Privacy,	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
712	6/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
713	6/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
714	7/8/2023	Sexual Assault, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
715	7/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH

716	7/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
717	7/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
718	8/8/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
719	8/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
720	8/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
721	9/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
722	9/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
723	11/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
724	11/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
725	12/8/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
726	12/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
727	12/8/2023	Assault & Battery, Theft	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
728	12/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
729	13/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
730	13/8/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Plateau	CDLC
731	13/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
732	13/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
733	14/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
734	14/8/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
735	14/8/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
736	15/8/2023	Forceful Eviction, Financial Abuse	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
737	15/8/2023	Conversion Practices, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I
738	15/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
739	15/8/2023	Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Abuja	CDLC
740	15/8/2023	Assault & Battery, Threat to Life, Mob Violence	Non State Actors	Kano	AlHI
741	16/8/2023	Assault & Battery, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
742	16/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
743	17/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
744	17/8/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
745	17/8/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
746	17/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
747	18/8/2023	Kito, Assault & Battery, Blackmail, Extortion, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
748	18/8/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Abia	AGHI
749	18/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
750	18/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
751	18/8/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
752	19/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
753	19/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
754	20/8/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
755	21/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
756	22/8/2023	Sexual Assault & Blackmail	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
757	22/8/2023	Harassment	State Actors	Lagos	RHRI

758	22/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
759	23/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
760	23/8/2023	Outing, Discrimination, Conversion Practices	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
761	23/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
762	23/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
763	24/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
764	24/8/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
765	24/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
766	25/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
767	25/8/2023	Discrimination, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
768	25/8/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
769	26/8/2023	Assault & Battery, Extortion, Arbitrary Arrest	State Actors	Edo	EIR-INITIATIVE
770	26/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
771	26/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
772	27/8/2023	Harassment, Assault	Non State Actors	Oyo	TIERs
773	27/8/2023		State Actors	Delta	TIERs
774	27/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
775	27/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
776	29/8/2023	Sexual Harassment, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	WHER
777	29/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
778	30/8/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
779	30/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
780	30/8/2023	Assault & Battery, Harassment	Non State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I
781	31/8/2023	Invasion of Privacy, Unlawful Detention, Abitrary Arrest	State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I
782	31/8/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI

September 2023

783	1/9/2023	Kito, Assault, Blackmail, Extortion	Non State Actors	Lagos	Kito Diaries
784	1/9/2023	Kito, Assault, Blackmail, Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	Kito Diaries
785	1/9/2023	Kito, Assault, Blackmail, Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	Kito Diaries
786	1/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
787	1/9/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
788	2/9/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
789	2/9/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
790	3/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
791	3/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
792	3/9/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
793	3/9/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
794	4/9/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
795	4/9/2023	Assault & Battery, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Abuja	CDLC
796	5/9/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Detention	State Actors	Niger	ICARH

797	5/9/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Rivers	CDLC
798	5/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
799	5/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
800	6/9/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	TIERs
801	6/9/2023	Assault, Forceful Eviction, Sexual Assault, Financial Abuse	Non State Actors	Edo	TIERs
802	6/9/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
803	6/9/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
804	6/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
805	7/9/2023	Conversion Practices, Forced Isolation	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
806	7/9/2023	Discrimination, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Oyo	I-AIHD
807	7/9/2023	Harassment	State Actors	Gombe	CDLC
808	7/9/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I
809	9/9/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
810	9/9/2023	Harassment	State Actors	Delta	CDLC
811	9/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
812	9/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
813	10/9/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	CDLC
814	11/9/2023	Invasion of Privacy, Discrimination, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Ondo	ICTHARAE
815	11/9/2023	Sexual Assault, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Abuja	WHER
816	11/9/2023	Assault & Battery, Theft	Non State Actors	Niger	WHER
817	12/9/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	CDLC
818	12/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
819	13/9/2023	Assault & Battery, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I
820	14/9/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
821	14/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
822	14/9/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
823	15/9/2023	Assault & Battery, Invasion of Privacy, Harassment	Non State Actors	Edo	EIR-INITIATIVE
824	15/9/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH
825	15/9/2023	Blackmail, Extortion, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Gombe	THEDI
826	16/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
827	17/9/2023	Forced Isolation, Assault	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
828	17/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
829	17/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
830	18/9/2023	Assault & Battery, Sexual Harassment, Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Ondo	ICTHARAE
831	18/9/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
832	19/9/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Ondo	ICTHARAE
833	19/9/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
834	20/9/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
835	21/9/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
836	21/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI

837	22/9/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	CDLC
838	23/9/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Ondo	ICTHARAE
839	23/9/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
840	24/9/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
841	24/9/2023	Sexual Assault, Forced Isolation	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI
842	25/9/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
843	27/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
844	27/9/2023	Harassment	State Actors	Benue	THEDI
845	30/9/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
846	30/9/2023	Invasion of Privacy, Arbitrary arrest, Assault & Battery	State & Non State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I
847	30/9/2023	Outing, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Ogun	ISRHRA

October 2023

848	1/10/2023	Sexual Harassment, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Ogun	ISRHRA
849	2/10/2023	Assault, Theft	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
850	2/10/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Cross River	IMH-I
851	2/10/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
852	2/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Ebonyi	AGHI
853	3/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
854	3/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
855	3/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
856	3/10/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
857	4/10/2023	Extortion, Harassment, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
858	4/10/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
859	4/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
860	4/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
861	4/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
862	4/10/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
863	5/10/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Abuja	CDLC
864	5/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
865	5/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
866	6/10/2023	Forceful Eviction, Discrimination, Sexual Harassment	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
867	6/10/2023	Harassment	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
868	6/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI
869	7/10/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	CDLC
870	7/10/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
871	7/10/2023	Extortion	State Actors	Enugu	AGHI
872	7/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
873	8/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
874	9/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
875	10/10/2023	Blackmail, Extortion	Non State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
876	10/10/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Niger	CDLC

877	11/10/2023	Assault, Harassment	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
878	11/10/2023	Conversion Practices, Forced Marriage,	Non State Actors	Kano	AIHI
879	11/10/2023	Sexual Assault, Financial Abuse Assault & Battery, Harassment, Theft	Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
880	11/10/2023	Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Abuja	CDLC
881	12/10/2023	Invasion of privacy, Blackmail	Non State Actors		ISHRAI
		Sexual Assault, Blackmail		Lagos	ISHRAI
882	14/10/2023	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Non State Actors	Lagos Kaduna	
883	14/10/2023	Assault	Non State Actors		ICARH
884	14/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
885	15/10/2023	Invasion of Privacy, Mob Violence, Blackmail, Assault & Battery, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Bauchi	HAHAI
886	16/10/2023	Assault & Battery, Extortion, Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
887	17/10/2023	Assault & Battery, Harassment, Discriminatiion	Non State Actors	Ekiti	ARDHI
888	18/10/2023	Sexual Assault, Assault & Battery, Invasion of Privacy, Harassment	Non State Actors	Edo	EIR-INITIATIVE
889	18/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
890	18/10/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Anambra	AGHI
891	19/10/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Extortion	State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
892	19/10/2023	Assault & Battery, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Bauchi	HAHAI
893	20/10/2023	Mob Violence, Theft	Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
894	21/10/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Conversion Practices	Non State Actors	Gombe	HAHAI
895	21/10/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
896	21/10/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Abuja	CDLC
897	22/10/2023	Outing, Forceful Eviction, Harassment	Non State Actors	Osun	I-AIHD
898	22/10/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH
899	23/10/2023	Forceful Eviction, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
900	24/10/2023	Unlawful Detention, Arbitrary Arrest, Extortion, Blackmail	State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
901	25/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Anambra	AGHI
902	26/10/2023	Blackmail, Extortion	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
903	26/10/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH
904	26/10/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI
905	27/10/2023	Unlawful Detention, Arbitrary Arrest	State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
906	27/10/2023	Assault, Harassment, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Gombe	THEDI
907	28/10/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
908	28/10/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
909	29/10/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Anambra	AGHI
910	30/10/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Benue	CDLC
911	30/10/2023	Theft, Outing, Extortion, Assault	Non State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I
912	31/10/2023	Discrimination, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI

November 2023

November 2023								
913	1/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI			
914	2/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH			
915	2/11/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Imo	AGHI			
916	2/11/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			
917	2/11/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			
918	2/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI			
919	3/11/2023	Theft	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH			
920	3/11/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Abuja	CDLC			
921	3/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI			
922	4/11/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH			
923	5/11/2023	Discrimination, Assault	Non State Actors	Niger	ICARH			
924	6/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			
925	6/11/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI			
926	7/11/2023	Kito	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs			
927	7/11/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH			
928	7/11/2023	Harassment	Non State Actors	Yobe	CDLC			
929	7/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI			
930	8/11/2023	Blackmail, Extortion, Kito	Non State Actors	Ogun	TIERs			
931	8/11/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH			
932	8/11/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Plateau	CDLC			
933	8/11/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Abia	AGHI			
934	8/11/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			
935	8/11/2023	Assault & Battery, Conversion Practices	Non State Actors	Kano	AlHI			
936	9/11/2023	Blackmail, Extortion, Invasion of Privacy, Kidnapping, Kito	Non State Actors	Kano	AlHI			
937	9/11/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Ondo	CDLC			
938	9/11/2023	Extortion	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			
939	9/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI			
940	10/11/2023	Assault	Non State Actors	Nasarawa	ICARH			
941	10/11/2023	Discrimination, Outing, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI			
942	10/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI			
943	11/11/2023	Unlawful Dismissal, Sexual Harassment	Non State Actors	Ogun	ISRHRA			
944	11/11/2023	Sexual Assault, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Kano	AlHI			
945	12/11/2023	Forceful Eviction, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI			
946	12/11/2023	Sexual Assault, Theft	Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN			
947	12/11/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Rivers	CDLC			
948	12/11/2023	Harassment, Sexual Harassment	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI			
949	13/11/2023	Blackmail, Extortion, Kito	Non State Actors	Kano	AlHI			
950	13/11/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Anambra	CDLC			
951	14/11/2023	Assault	State Actors	Kaduna	ICARH			
952	14/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Enugu	AGHI			
953	15/11/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI			
				J				

954	15/11/2023	Invasion of privacy, Extortion	State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
955	15/11/2023	Assault & Battery, Harassment	Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
956	15/11/2023	Invasion of Privavcy, Extortion and Blackmail	Non State Actors	Gombe	THEDI
957	16/11/2023	Discrimination, Outing	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
958	16/11/2023	Blackmail, Extortion	Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
959	16/11/2023	Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
960	16/11/2023	Discrimination, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Lagos	RHRI
961	17/11/2023	Extortion, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Ekiti	ARDHI
962	17/11/2023	Sexual Assault, Harassment	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI
963	17/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	Anambra	AGHI
964	17/11/2023	Harassment, Discrimination, Assault	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI
965	18/11/2023	Harassment, Discrimination, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Edo	EIR-INITIATIVE
966	18/11/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
967	20/11/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
968	20/11/2023	Forceful Eviction, Assault & Battery, Harassment	Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
969	20/11/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Detention	State Actors	Niger	ICARH
970	20/11/2023	Invasion of privacy, Blackmail, Forceful Eviction	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI
971	20/11/2023	Assault, Harassment, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI
972	21/11/2023	Discrimination, Forceful Eviction, Financial Abuse	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI
973	21/11/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Extortion, Outing, Forceful Eviction	State Actors	Gombe	THEDI
974	21/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
975	22/11/2023	Theft	Non State Actors	Abuja	ICARH
976	22/11/2023	Assault & Battery, Invasion of Privacy, Blackmail, Extortion, Threat to Life, Arbitrary Arrest	Non State Actors	Kaduna	WIHYE
977	23/11/2023	Outing, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
978	23/11/2023	Mob Violence, Assault & Battery, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
979	23/11/2023	Discrimination, Harassment	Non State Actors	Katsina	CDLC
980	23/11/2023	Assault, Harassment, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Gombe	THEDI
981	24/11/2023	Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
982	25/11/2023	Sexual Assault, Blackmail	Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
983	25/11/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Gombe	THEDI
984	25/11/2023	Blackmail	Non State Actors	lmo	AGHI
985	27/11/2023	Harassment, Assault, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Plateau	TIERs
986	27/11/2023	Sexual Assault	Non State Actors	Niger	CHIYN
987	27/11/2023	Assault, Harassment, Discrimination	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI
988	27/11/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention	State Actors	Imo	AGHI
989	28/11/2023	Assault & Battery, Kito	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI

990	29/11/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Extortion	State Actors	Lagos	ISHRAI
991	29/11/2023	Discrimination	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI
992	30/11/2023	Harassment, Discrimination, Threat to Life	Non State Actors	Lagos	TIERs
993	30/11/2023	Arbitrary Arrest, Unlawful Detention, Extortion	State Actors	Oyo	I-AIHD
994	30/11/2023	Assault & Battery, Kito, Theft	Non State Actors	Benue	THEDI
995	30/11/2023	Invasion of Privacy, Harassment, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Bauchi	HAHAI
996	30/11/2023	Theft, Assault & Battery	Non State Actors	Cross River	GEHAR-I

RECOMMENDATIONS

Our recommendations centre on access to justice for the promotion of LGBTQIA+ rights, the recognition and championing of the inclusion of LGBTQIA+ rights in existing human rights frameworks, and the improved investigation and prosecution of violations based on SOGIESC.

To the Nigerian Government

- Repeal the Same Sex Marriage Prohibition Act and similarly repressive laws across Nigeria.
- Guarantee the complete protection of constitutionally provided rights irrespective of sexual orientation and gender identity.
- Condemn violence against people based on actual or perceived sexual orientation and genderidentity or expression as recommended in Resolution 275.
- Respond to the African Commission's recommendation to review laws that criminalise rights to assembly and association.
- Enact laws and implement policies to discourage hate speech and other actions inciting discrimination against LGBTQIA+ people.
- Enforce constitutional and treaty provisions on universal human rights in public and private institutions.
- Expand existing health policies to reinforce medical ethics on confidentiality and nondiscrimination.

To the National Human Rights Commission

 Implement adequate training for commission members on sexual orientation and gender identity issues to remove bias and update their knowledge about existing laws and protections applicable to all Nigerians, including LGBTQIA+ people.

- Campaign to promote an end to hate speech and statements inciting violence against LGBTQIA+ people in Nigeria from religious leaders, political leaders and others.
- Liaise with LGBTQIA+ human rights organisations to promote awareness and reduce exclusion of issues affecting LGBTQIA+ people.
- Establish a reporting process on human rights abuses experienced based on actual and perceived sexual orientation.

To the Nigerian Police Force

- End all arbitrary and illegal stops and searches of people's devices.
- End arbitrary police raids and indiscriminate arrests based on perceived or actual sexual orientation and gender identity or expression.
- Refrain from misusing and misinterpreting the law to effect extrajudicial arrests and abuse of people perceived to be LGBTQIA+.
- Investigate and prosecute incidents of violence against LGBTQIA+ people

To Civil Society

- Acknowledge LGBTQIA+ rights as part of the human rights framework and ensure their protection and promotion.
- Implement the national programme of action for the protection of the rights of LGBTQIA+ persons in Nigeria
- Mainstream LGBTQIA+ rights in relevant health, gender and human rights programmes.
- Be visible and vocal allies to LGBTQIA+ folks and organisations, amplifying their issues in relevant spaces and platforms.

ABOUT US AND PARTNERS

The Initiative for Equal Rights (TIERs) is a Nigeria-based registered non-profit organisation working to create a society where human rights are guaranteed regardless of status, identity, orientation and affiliation. We exist to protect, uphold and promote the rights and humanity of all Nigerians through advocacy, empowerment, education, and the provision of safe platforms of convergence. We were founded in 2005 as a response to the discrimination and marginalisation of sexual minorities in HIV prevention programming, human rights protection, advocacy, and mainstream human rights work.

Access to Good Health Initiative (AGHI) is a community-based organisation working for the sexual minorities on HIV/AIDS-related issues and human rights interventions within the southeastern states (Abia, Anambra, Ebonyi, Enugu and Imo state, respectively) with her headquarters in Enugu state Nigeria. AGHI has been serving and supporting LGBTI community members in many diverse ways. Most of the time, with little or no donor funds, AGHI has reached many of her community members to sensitise them on basic knowledge and information regarding human rights violations.

Access to Health and Rights Development Initiative (AHRDI) was founded in january 2013 with the name Center For Life Development(CLD), due to the registration with Corporate Affairs Commission the name changed to Access To Health And Rights Development Initiative(AHRDI) and the Lagos state government to operate as a not for profit human rights organization. It came into existence as a platform and response to the health challenges faced by marginalized groups and individuals. AHRDI envisions a society where sexual and reproductive health and rights needs of individuals are guaranteed, with young people

playing a critical role. AHRDI's mission is to work with relevant stakeholders to protect and promote the sexual health and rights needs of individuals and groups especially sexual minorities through capacity strengthening, advocacy, community mobilization, information dissemination and service delivery.

Achievers Improved Health Initiative (AIHI) was founded in 2014 to address the health and rights needs of diverse marginalized/minority persons in Nigeria. This was in response to the effect of the syncretism of culture and religion in our context that exacerbates our lived experiences, leaving us more vulnerable to stigma and discrimination. Our primary purpose was to provide quality information and access to services that would reduce stigma surrounding HIV/AIDS, non-conforming identities, and improve quality of life. Today, our work has expanded to incorporate broader aspects of Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights, mental health, empowerment, advocacy, and we have adopted feminist principles to drive actionable steps towards strategic movement building, inclusion, dismantling of biases, policy advocacy, research, documentation and transformative leadership in the full realization of human rights. AIHI understands that discrimination against persons living with HIV intersects with other sources of discrimination including ethnicity, ability, sexual orientation, gender identity, age, religion and sociocultural background, which can further limit access and deepen inequalities.

Community Health Initiative for Youths in Nigeria ('CHIYN') is a non-governmental organization that is sensitive to the plight of specific groups within our society who are often unjustifiably classified as counter-culture. We aim

ABOUT US AND PARTNERS

to be versatile to the implementation of the basic needs that are ordinarily not easily accessible to marginalized groups in our society. We engage the community in a number of humans rights issues, such as internally displaced children, and women's rights issues. Founded in 2015, CHIYN is registered with Corporate Affairs Commission (CAC) on the 16th of April 2016. CHIYN Nigeria seeks to advocate for, educate, and empower sexual minorities, with a focus on the marginalized population. CHIYN operates in three (3) States within the country including the Federal Capital Territory.

Creme de la Creme Organization is a Trans and Non-Binary Focus Organization in Nigeria. working to empower the community through vocational skill training, Economic empowerment, provision of Human Rights Service, Gender base Services, HIV Counseling Services, Provision of Safe Shelters for the Homeless Trans and Non-binary persons, documenting incidents of violence's against the community as a tool for advocacy to lobby for Policy and Legal Reforms in the country for a safer environment. CDLC aims to contribute to the improvement of lives of the Trans persons in Nigeria towards Access to Healthcare Services, Rights, Safety and Education through strong Activism, Advocacy, Vocational training and Sensitization.

Excellent Improved Reachout Initiative EIR-INITIATIVE was Founded in December 20 2020. EIR-INITIATIVE is a non profit non partisan LGBTQIA+ community based organization for LGBTQIA+ person's living with disability. The organisation was formed on the need to strategically advocate for the special needs of LGBTQIA+ person's living with disability. EIR-INITIATIVE in her passion to achieve the above stated goal organised the first Conference for LGBTQIA+ person's living with Disability in August 17th 2022 where diverse stakeholders were in attendance. EIR-INITIATIVE

being a nascent community based organisation have her Registration in progress with specific visions and Objectives to actualise her mandate.

Hope Alive Health Awareness Initiative (HAHAI) is a human rights organisation working within the context of its socio-cultural environment. It was founded in October 2011 following the arrest of some men in Bauchi state. The arrest hit close to home and brought an urgent need to address the rejection and abuse suffered by the LGBT community in the conservative northern part of Nigeria. In addition to this, HAHAI sought to address the self-hatred and blame felt by LGBT individuals within northern Nigeria because of their sexuality. This prompted the founding of HAHAI to support the LGBT population in the North on issues such as self-acceptance, access to legal issues and health care services.

Improved Sexual Health and Rights Advocacy Initiative (ISHRAI) was founded in 2014 and formally registered with the Corporate Affairs Commission in 2017. ISHRAI was formed by Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Queer persons who were facing high levels of stigma, discrimination, human rights and health rights violation in their attempt to access basic and fundamental conventional services provided by the State. It was registered to promote the health and rights of marginalised groups in Nigeria, especially, LGBQ persons, through advocacy, active participation, service delivery and innovative engagement processes.

Initiative for Gender Equality and Sexual Reproductive Health (IGE-SRH) strives to ensure young LBQTI individuals are engaged in meaningful decision-making processes through advocacy, knowledge generation, information sharing, partnership, and capacity building.

Initiative for Gender Equality Health and Right (GEHARI) was founded in 2019 to provide HIV prevention, psycho social care and support to Transgender men and women and vulnerable population who are at high risk of HIV infection, empower them with adequate knowledge on sexual reproductive health and right and also issues associated with gender identity and preference in Nigeria. GEHARI's mission is to facilitate the progress of HIV prevention, treatment, care, and support while eliminating Gender based discrimination and violence against the trans community and their sexual partner through advocacy, empowerment, and capacity building in Nigeria.

Initiative For Improved Male Health (IMH-I)

is an LGBT organization that was founded in 2009 and got registered in 2011, we have been at the forefront of rendering SRHR services to GBMSM and also Human rights violation for LGBT persons in the south-south region of Nigeria, IMH-I is part of the plaintiff that challenge some part of the SSMPA 2014. Our Mission is: To lead collective actions for sexual and gender minorities, wellbeing through capacity strengthening, legislative policies, advocacies and leadership development. Vision: Creating a Nigeria where the fullness of human rights is guaranteed for all.

Initiative for Sexual Reproductive Health and Rights Awareness (ISRHRA) was birthed by a group of young African feminist and sexual minority women who came together to form a formidable force against inequality in Nigeria. ISRHRA promotes, protects and advances the fundamental human rights of lesbians, bisexual and queer women in Nigeria. The Organization is positioned to lead advocacy in ending discrimination and stigmatization of lesbians, bisexual and queer women in Nigeria and inclusion in policy making as equal members of the society. ISRHRA was

founded in 2015 and has tried to maintain links between grassroots sexual minority organizations at the national and international level.

Initiative for the Advancement of Improved Health & Development (I - AIHD) is a human rights & healthcare non governmental organisation, providing healthcare services for vulnerable people in Nigeria through public education, direct service delivery and so on.

International Centre for Advocacy on Rights to Health (ICARH) is an independent initiative registered with the Corporate Affairs Commission of Nigeria to contribute to policy issues affecting the rights of sexual minorities and PLWHAs in Nigeria through research analysis, training, awareness campaign development and advocacy. ICARH was established in 1999 to fill a vacuum within the civil society's landscape. In healthcare, ICARH works to reduce the incidence, prevalence and impact of HIV/AIDs amongst key populations. Presently, ICARH implements HIV prevention and Palliative Care programs. These programs include the management of MSM Living with HIV (MSMLHIV) through medical research, community-based HIV prevention project and ARV clinic for members of Key Affected Populations in the FCT. ICARH also supports her target community with human rights and paralegal services to ensure the promotion and protection of the rights of sexual minorities.

International Centre for Total Health and Rights Advocacy Empowerment ICTHARAE exists to advocate, propagate and resonate the rights of disadvantaged persons to social, legal and wellbeing needs irrespective of ethnic group, culture, sexual orientation and gender identity.

ABOUT US AND PARTNERS

Kito Diaries (KD) started out as a blog that intended simply to tell the stories of LGBT Nigerians and provide the narrative of the community that mainstream media and public would rather bury. But in the years since its creation in 2014, it has grown into a community that does more than tell stories. It provides guidance on issues regarding safety, especially pertaining to the hookup culture amongst gay people, forges connections between community members and the provisions they need, such as healthcare and welfare, and creates an enabling environment that allows for those in the community who would otherwise believe they're alone to know that there's a whole community of people like them who exist.

Responsive Action for Sustainable Empowerment Initiative (RASE-I) was founded to achieve Gender Equality and Sustainable Development through Community Engagement, Advocacy, Leadership development and Education Research.

Total Health Empowerment and Development Initiative (THEDI) was founded in 2010 to promote the health and legal rights of vulnerable persons in Nigeria. THEDI is an LGBTQIA+ led, focused & competent organization, actively contributing to addressing priority community needs like all forms of human rights violations, safety & security challenges, family rejection & homelessness, HIV & other sexual/reproductive health issues, etc.; through community-led approaches. THEDI also leads community advocacies, mobilization and strengthening/ engagement approaches aimed at community sustainability. THEDI has over the years recorded, addressed and documented human rights violations, provided HIV/STI/GBV prevention services to gay men/other men who have sex with

men and transgender persons, and linked many to ART, PrEP & PEP services; to mention a few services in Benue & Gombe States.

Wave Makers Initiative for Health and Youth **Empowerment (WIHYE)** is KP (Bisexual)-Led (LGBTQIA+) organization founded in 2010. It is a Non-Governmental (Community Based) Organization, Non-Political, Not-for -Profit and Non-Religious, Indigenous and Dynamic Organization that provides grass-root access to health, defense of the Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights of persons with diverse SOGIESC, while delivering comprehensive human centered HIV/ AIDS prevention, care and support, and other Human Rights services to marginalized and vulnerable populations. It is duly registered with the Corporate Affairs Commission and Nigeria Youth Clubs/ Associations Edict. It is also registered with the Nigerian Network of NGOs, the Nigerian Key Populations Health and Rights Network, Civil Society for HIV and AIDS in Nigeria.

Women's Health and Equal Rights Initiative (WHER) is a not for profit organization focused on promoting the rights and well-being of lesbian, bisexual and queer (LBQ) women in Nigeria by addressing the psychosocial effect of the dual discrimination faced by LBQ women and their under-representation in Nigeria. WHER aims at promoting a deeper conceptual knowledge of sexuality and sexual orientation, providing access to health and other support services to LBQ women through research, advocacy, education, empowerment and other direct services. Since inception in 2011, WHER has been addressing the issues faced by women which include genderbased violence and sexual and reproductive rights abuses.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

himdimma Ike, Kayinsola Bashorun, Alexandra Maduagwu and Oluwaremilekun Makinde received reports of violations based on actual or perceived SOGIESC, documented in this report.

TIERs thanks the contributors Chimdimma Ike, Alexandra Maduagwu, Olufunso Alufoge, Oyindamola Bolaji, Odezi Iyede and Godwin Kalu and for their work in researching and writing different sections of the report. We also thank our partner organisations that provided data for this report and grassroots activists who will work with us in disseminating the 2023 Human Rights Violations Report across Nigeria.

The 2023 Human Rights Violations Report was compiled by Chimdimma Ike and edited by Godwin Kalu.

APPENDIX

SAME SEX MARRIAGE (PROHIBITION) ACT 2013

An Act to prohibit a marriage contract or civil union entered into between persons of same sex, solemnization of same; and for related matters.

[7th Day of January, 2014] [Commencement]

Enacted by the National Assembly of the Federal Republic of Nigeria:

Prohibition of marriage or civil union by persons of same sex

- **1.** (1) A marriage contract or civil union entered into between persons of same sex:
 - (a) is prohibited in Nigeria; and
 - (b) shall not be recognized as entitled to the benefits of a valid marriage.
 - (2) A marriage contract or civil union entered into between persons of same sex by virtue of a certificate issued by a foreign country is void in Nigeria, and any benefit accruing therefrom by virtue of the certificate shall not be enforced by any court of law.

[Solemnization of same sex marriage in places of worship]

2. (1) A marriage contract or civil union entered into between persons of same sex shall not be solemnized in a church, mosque or any other place of worship in Nigeria.

(2) No certificate issued to persons of same sex in a marriage or civil union shall be valid in Nigeria.

[Recognized Marriage in Nigeria]

3. Only a marriage contracted between a man and a woman shall be recognized as valid in Nigeria.

[Registration of homosexual clubs and societies]

- **4.** (1) The Registration of gay clubs, societies and organisations, their sustenance, processions and meetings is prohibited.
 - (2) The public show of same sex amorous relationship directly or indirectly is prohibited.

[Offences and Penalties]

- **5.** (1) A person who enters into a same sex marriage contract or civil union commits an offence and is liable on conviction to a term of 14 years imprisonment.
 - (2) A person who registers, operates or participates in gay clubs, societies and organization, or directly or indirectly makes public show of same sex amorous relationship in Nigeria commits an offence and is liable on conviction to a term of 10 years imprisonment.

(3) A person or group of persons who administers, witnesses, abets, or aids the solemnization of a same sex marriage or civil union, or supports the registration, operation and sustenance of gay clubs, societies, organizations, processions or meetings in Nigeria commits an offence and is liable on conviction to a term of 10 years imprisonment.

[Jurisdiction]

6. The High Court of a State or of the Federal capital Territory shall have jurisdiction to entertain matters arising from the breach of the provisions of this Act.

[Interpretation]

7. In this Act:

"Marriage" means a legal union entered into between persons of opposite sex in accordance with the Marriage Act, Islamic Law or Customary Law;

"Court" means High Court of a State or of the Federal Capital Territory;

"Same sex marriage" means the coming together of persons of the same sex with the purpose of living together as husband and wife or for other purposes of same sexual relationship; "Witness" means a person who signs or witnesses the solemnization of the marriage; and

"civil union" means any arrangement between persons of the same sex to live together as sex partners, and includes such description as:

adult independent relationships; caring partnerships; civil partnerships; civil solidarity pacts; domestic partnerships; reciprocal beneficiary relationships; registered partnerships; significant relationships; and stable unions.

[Citation]

8. This Act may be cited as the Same Sex Marriage (Prohibition) Act, 2014.

NOTES

NOTES

NOTES

